UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended February 28, 2015

o0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number: 000-50298

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware 98-0376008
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) (L.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

Hi-Tech Park 2/4 Givat Ram

PO Box 39098
Jerusalem, Israel 91390
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

+972-2-566-0001
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes x Noo
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to
be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes o No x

As of March 31, 2015, there were 10,823,943 shares of the issuer’s common stock, $0.012 par value per share, outstanding.




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
FORM 10-Q
TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
ITEM 3 — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 4 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 5 - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 6 - EXHIBITS

© © © 0 O N = =

As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” mean Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and our wholly-
owned Israeli subsidiary, Oramed Ltd., unless otherwise indicated. All dollar amounts refer to U.S. Dollars unless otherwise indicated.

On February 28, 2015, the exchange rate between the New Israeli Shekel, or NIS, and the dollar, as quoted by the Bank of Israel, was NIS 3.966 to $1.00.
Unless indicated otherwise by the context, statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that provide the dollar equivalent of NIS amounts or provide the
NIS equivalent of dollar amounts are based on such exchange rate.




ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2015




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Balance sheets

Statements of comprehensive loss

Statements of changes in stockholders’ equity

Statements of cash flows
Notes to financial statements

Page

F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6-F-14




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)

U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

February 28, August 31,

2015 2014
Assets
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,102 $ 1,762
Short term deposits 16,351 18,481
Marketable securities 695 1,047
Restricted cash 16 16
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 129 64
Related parties - 330
Grants receivable from the chief scientist 2 78
Total current assets 18,295 21,778
LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT 4,665 3
AMOUNTS FUNDED IN RESPECT OF EMPLOYEE RIGHTS UPON RETIREMENT 7 7
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 13 14
Total assets $ 22980 $ 21,802
Liabilities and stockholders' equity
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 570 $ 926
Related parties 35 47
Total current liabilities 605 973
LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
Employee rights upon retirement 9 9
Provision for uncertain tax position 27 27
36 36
COMMITMENTS (note 2)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock, $ 0.012 par value (30,000,000 authorized shares; 10,820,193 and
10,102,555 shares issued and outstanding as of February 28, 2015 and August 31, 2014,
respectively) 129 121
Additional paid-in capital 53,463 48,040
Accumulated other comprehensive income 100 452
Accumulated loss (31,353) (27,820)
Total stockholders' equity 22,339 20,793
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 22,980 $ 21,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, NET

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

OPERATING LOSS

FINANCIAL INCOME

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

NET LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

SUBSEQUENT DECREASE (INCREASE) IN THE FAIR VALUE OF
AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES PREVIOUSLY WRITTEN
DOWN AS IMPAIRED

RECLASSIFICATION ADJUSTMENT TO FINANCIAL INCOME OF

GAINS
ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

UNREALIZED LOSS (GAIN) ON AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (INCOME)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

LOSS PER COMMON SHARE:
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
USED IN COMPUTING BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER
COMMON STOCK

Six months ended

Three months ended

February 28, February 28, February 28, February 28,
2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 2,438 $ 1,424 $ 1,136 $ 674
1,138 930 538 512
3,576 2,354 1,674 1,186
(65) (120) (38) (74)
22 5 1 3
3,533 2,239 1,637 1,115
9 (54) = (49)
_ 44 - 26
343 (534) (7) (490)
352 (544) (7) (513)
$ 3,885 $ 1,695 $ 1,630 $ 602
$ 034 $ 026 $ 015 $ 0.12
10,482,190 8,531,150 10,826,146 9,127,799

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except for share data)

Accumulated
Additional other Total
Common Stock paid-in comprehensive  Accumulated stockholders'
Shares $ capital income loss equity
In thousands
BALANCE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2014 10,103 $ 121§ 48,040 $ 452§ (27,820) $ 20,793
SHARES ISSUED FOR CASH, NET 696 8 4,825 - - 4,833
SHARES ISSUED FOR SERVICES 4 i 26 - - 26
EXERCISE OF OPTIONS 1 * 8 - - 8
STOCK BASED COMPENSATION 16 & 564 - - 564
NET LOSS - - - - (3,533) (3,533)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS - - - (352) - (352)
BALANCE AS OF FEBRUARY 28,
2015 10,820 $ 129 % 53,463 $ 100 $ (31,353) $ 22,339
* Represents an amount of less than $1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

F-4




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

U.S. dollars in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Exchange differences and interest on deposits
Stock based compensation
Common stock issued for services
Gain on sale of investment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and related parties
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and related parties
Liability for employee rights upon retirement
Total net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of short term deposits

Purchase of long term deposits

Proceeds from sale of short term deposits

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities

Funds in respect of employee rights upon retirement
Total net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - net of issuance expenses*
Proceeds from exercise of warrants and options
Proceeds from shares to be issued for exercise of warrants

Net cash derived from financing activities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

See note 5.

Six months ended

February 28, February 28,
2015 2014

$ (3,533) $ (2,239)
3 3
(36) (33)

564 333

26 64
- (44)
341 (167)
(368) (148)

- 1
(3,003) (2,230)
@3] )]
(1,573) (18,600)

(4,652) -

3,750 5,236

- 80
= 1)
(2,477) (13,294)

4,833 14,887

8 1,490

- 118

4,841 16,495

(21) 10

(660) 981

1,762 2,272

$ 1,102 $ 3,253

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a. General:

1)

2)

Incorporation and operations

Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated on April 12, 2002, under the laws of the State of Nevada. On February
17, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Hadasit Medical Services and Development Ltd (“Hadasit”) to acquire the
provisional patent related to an orally ingestible insulin capsule to be used for the treatment of individuals with diabetes.

On March 11, 2011, the Company was reincorporated from the State of Nevada to the State of Delaware.

On May 14, 2007, the Company incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in Israel, Oramed Ltd. (the “Subsidiary”), which is engaged in
research and development. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the term “Group” refers to Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and the
Subsidiary.

Following the adoption of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-10, Development Stage Entities (Topic 915), the Company
removed the inception to date information and all reference to development.

Development and liquidity risks

The Group is engaged in research and development in the biotechnology field for innovative pharmaceutical solutions, including an orally
ingestible insulin capsule to be used for the treatment of individuals with diabetes, and the use of orally ingestible capsules for delivery of
other polypeptides, and has not generated any revenues from its operations. Continued operation of the Company is contingent upon
obtaining sufficient funding until it becomes profitable.

Successful completion of the Company’s development programs and its transition to normal operations is dependent upon obtaining
necessary regulatory approvals from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) prior to selling its products within the United
States, and foreign regulatory approvals must be obtained to sell its products internationally. There can be no assurance that the Company
will receive regulatory approval of any of its product candidates, and a substantial amount of time may pass before the Company achieves
a level of revenues adequate to support its operations, if at all. The Company also expects to incur substantial expenditures in connection
with the regulatory approval process for each of its product candidates during their respective developmental periods. Obtaining
marketing approval will be directly dependent on the Company’s ability to implement the necessary regulatory steps required to obtain
marketing approval in the United States and in other countries. The Company cannot predict the outcome of these activities.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

Based on its current cash resources and commitments, and cash received in private and public offerings in the six month period ended
February 28, 2015 and in the year ended August 31, 2014, the Company believes it will be able to maintain its current planned
development activities and the corresponding level of expenditures for at least the next 12 months and beyond the date that the financial
statements are issued, although no assurance can be given that it will not need additional funds prior to such time. If there are unexpected
increases in general and administrative expenses or research and development expenses, the Company may need to seek additional
financing during the next 12 months.

b. Newly issued and recently adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-15, Presentation
of Financial Statements-Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going
Concern (“ASU 2014-15). This new standard requires management to assess the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating
and expanding upon certain principles that are currently in U.S. auditing standards. Specifically, the amendments (1) provide a definition of the
term substantial doubt, (2) require an evaluation every reporting period including interim periods, (3) provide principles for considering the
mitigating effect of management’s plans, (4) require certain disclosures when substantial doubt is alleviated as a result of consideration of
management’s plans, (5) require an express statement and other disclosures when substantial doubt is not alleviated, and (6) require an
assessment for a period of one year after the date that the financial statements are issued (or available to be issued). ASU 2014-15 will be
effective prospectively for annual reporting periods ending after the first annual period ending after December 15, 2016 and interim periods
therein. Early application of the standard is permitted for any annual reporting period or interim period for which the entity’s financial
statements have not yet been issued. The Company has elected to early adopt the provisions of ASU 2014-15 in fiscal year 2014. The adoption
of ASU 2014-15 did not have any material effect on the consolidated financial statement presentation.

F-7




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

c. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Preparation

The condensed consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP") and on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014 (the “2014 Form 10-K”). These condensed consolidated financial statements
reflect all adjustments that are of a normal recurring nature and that are considered necessary for a fair statement of the results of the periods
presented. Certain information and disclosures normally included in annual consolidated financial statements have been omitted in this interim
period report pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Because the condensed consolidated interim
financial statements do not include all of the information and disclosures required by U.S. GAAP for annual financial statements, they should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes included in the 2014 Form 10-K. The results for interim periods

are not necessarily indicative of a full fiscal year’s results.

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS:

a. On September 11, 2011, the Subsidiary entered into an agreement with Hadasit, the Company's Medical and Chief Technology Officer (the
“CTO”) and Dr. Daniel Schurr Subsidiary (the “Hadasit Agreement™) to retain consulting and clinical trial services. According to the Hadasit
Agreement, Hadasit will be entitled to a consideration of $200 to be paid by the Subsidiary in accordance with the actual progress of the studies,

$95 of which were recognized through February 28, 2015. See also note 1a(1).

b. On February 15, 2011, the Subsidiary entered into a consulting agreement with a third party (the “Consultant”) for a period of five years,
pursuant to which the Consultant will provide consultation on scientific and clinical matters. The Consultant is entitled to a fixed monthly fee of
$8, royalties of 8% of the net royalties actually received by the Subsidiary in respect of the patent that was sold to Entera Bio Ltd. (“Entera”) on
March 31, 2011 and an option to purchase up to 20,834 shares of the Company at an exercise price of $6.00 per share. The option vests in five
annual installments commencing February 16, 2012 and expires on February 16, 2021. The fair value of the option as of February 28, 2015 was
$105, using the following assumptions: dividend yield of 0%; expected term of 5.97 years; expected volatility of 79.74%; and risk-free interest
rate of 1.86%. The fair value of the unvested options is remeasured at each balance sheet reporting date and is recognized over the related service

period using the straight-line method.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS (continued):

C. On April 28, 2013, the Subsidiary entered into a new lease agreement for its office facilities in Israel, which replaced the lease agreement from
2012. The new lease agreement is for a period of 36 months commencing November 4, 2013. The annual lease payment is NIS 89,000 from
2014 through 2016, and will be linked to the increase in the Israeli consumer price index (“CPI”) (as of February 28, 2015, the future annual
lease payments under the new agreement will be $22, based on the exchange rate as of February 28, 2015).

As security for its obligation under this lease agreement the Company provided a bank guarantee in an amount equal to three monthly lease
payments.

d. On May 13, 2014, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a third party advisor for a period of twelve months, pursuant to which
the advisor will provide investor relations services and will be entitled to receive a monthly cash fee and 15,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock that will be issued in four equal installments, on or about each of August 1, 2014, November 1, 2014, February 1, 2015 and May
1, 2015. As of February 28, 2015, the Company issued to such advisor 7,500 shares. The aggregate fair value of the shares at the dates of the
grant was $64.

e. On February 6, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into a second agreement with a clinical research organization (“CRO”), for its Phase IIa clinical
trial for an oral insulin capsule for type 1 diabetes patients, which was completed in October 2014. As consideration for its services, the
Subsidiary paid the CRO a total amount of approximately $280 during the term of the engagement and based on achievement of certain
milestones, all of which were recognized through February 28, 2015.

On July 22, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into a third agreement with the same CRO, for its Phase IIb clinical trial for an oral insulin capsule for
type 2 diabetes patients, which is expected to begin in the second quarter of calendar year 2015. As consideration for its services, the Subsidiary
will pay the CRO a total amount of approximately $3,290 during the term of the engagement and based on achievement of certain milestones,
$761 of which were recognized through February 28, 2015.

f. On March 3, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into an additional agreement with a vendor, for the process development and production of one of its
oral capsule ingredients in the amount of $311, $40 of which were recognized through February 28, 2015, and bonus payments of up to $600 that
will be paid upon achieving certain milestones, as described in the agreement and which were not recognized through February 28, 2015.

On May 15, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into an additional agreement with the same vendor, for the process development and production of the
same capsule ingredients in the amount of $217, all of which was recognized through February 28, 2015.

On December 12, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into an additional agreement with the same vendor, for the process development and production
of the same capsule ingredients in the amount of $550, $202 of which was recognized through February 28, 2015.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2 - COMMITMENTS (continued):

g. On May 26, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into a supply agreement with another vendor, according to which the vendor will manufacture capsules
for total consideration of $214, $174 of which was recognized through February 28, 2015.

h. On February 2, 2015, the Subsidiary entered into an agreement with a different CRO, for a glucose clamp clinical study for its oral insulin
capsule. As consideration for its services, the Subsidiary will pay the CRO a total amount of approximately $276 during the term of the
engagement and based on achievement of certain milestones, none of which was recognized through February 28, 2015.

i On January 20, 2015, the Subsidiary entered into a purchase order for the manufacturing of insulin capsules for total consideration of Swiss
Franc (“CHF”) 211 (approximately $241) of which CHF 104 (approximately $118) was recognized through February 28, 2015.

j. Grants from Bio-Jerusalem

The Subsidiary is committed to pay royalties to the Bio-Jerusalem fund on proceeds from future sales at a rate of 4% and up to 100% of the
amount of the grant received by the Company (Israeli CPI linked) at the total amount of $65. As of February 28, 2015, the Subsidiary had not
yet realized any revenues and did not incur any royalty liability.

During the six month period ended February 28, 2015, the Company received no grants from the Bio-Jerusalem fund.
k. Grants from the Office of the Chief Scientist of the Ministry of Economy (formerly the Ministry of Industry, Trade and Labor) of Israel (“OCS”).

Under the terms of the Company’s funding from the OCS, royalties of 3%-3.5% are payable on sales of products developed from a project so
funded, up to 100% of the amount of the grant received by the Company (dollar linked) with the addition of annual interest at a rate based on
LIBOR.

At the time the grants were received, successful development of the related projects was not assured. In case of failure of a project that was
partly financed as above, the Company is not obligated to pay any such royalties.

As of February 28, 2015, the Subsidiary had not yet realized any revenues from said projects and did not incur any royalty liability. The total
amount that was actually received through February 28, 2015 was $2,160.

j- For the six and three month periods ended February 28, 2015, the research and development expenses are presented net of OCS and Bio-
Jerusalem fund grants, in the total amount of $17 and $1, respectively.

F-10




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE:

Fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. In order to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, the guidance establishes a
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels, which are described as
follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs.

As of February 28, 2015, the assets or liabilities measured at fair value were comprised of available for sale securities (Level 1). See also note 4.

As of February 28, 2015, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits, other current assets, accounts payables and
accrued expenses approximates their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of long-term deposits also approximates their carrying value, since they bear interest at rates close to the prevailing market rates.
The long-term bank deposits bear an annual interest rate of 0.93%-1.00% and will mature during the third quarter of fiscal year 2016. The
amounts funded in respect of employee rights are stated at cash surrender value which approximates its fair value.

NOTE 4 - MARKETABLE SECURITIES:

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recorded as a separate component of other
comprehensive income in equity until realized. Unrealized losses that are considered to be other-than-temporary are charged to statement of
operations as an impairment charge and are included in the consolidated statement of operations under impairment of available-for-sale
securities.

The Company considers available evidence in evaluating potential impairments of its investments, including the duration and extent to which
fair value is less than cost, and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment. Realized gains and losses on sales of the securities are
included in the consolidated statement of operations as financial income or expenses.

As of February 28, 2015, marketable securities consisted wholly of equity securities of D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd ("D.N.A"). D.N.A’s
ordinary shares are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange and have a quoted price. The fair value of those securities is measured at the quoted
prices of the securities on the measurement date.




ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 4 - MARKETABLE SECURITIES (continued):

During the six month period ended February 28, 2014, the Subsidiary sold in aggregate 1,625,989 of the D.N.A ordinary shares for total
consideration of $80. During the six month period ended February 28, 2015, the Group did not sell any of the D.N.A ordinary shares.

As of February 28, 2015, the Group owns approximately 9.8% of D.N.A’s outstanding ordinary shares.
The cost of the securities as of February 28, 2015 and August 31, 2014 is $595.

The cost of the securities sold and the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income into financial income (amounting to
$0 and $44 during the six month periods ended February 28, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and to $0 and $26 during the three month periods
ended February 28, 2015 and 2014, respectively) were determined by specific identification.

NOTE 5 - STOCK HOLDERS’ EQUITY:

On November 3, 2014, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Guangxi Wuzhou Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd. (the
“Investor”), pursuant to which the Company issued to the Investor an aggregate of 696,378 shares of common stock, at a price of $7.18 per
share, which was equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market on October 31, 2014, for aggregate
gross proceeds of approximately $5,000. The net proceeds to the Company from the offering were approximately $4,833, after deducting a
finder's fee of $150 and other offering expenses of the Company. The offering closed on November 28, 2014.

See also note 8 with respect to an at market issuance sales agreement.
NOTE 6 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION:

a. On November 13, 2014, the Company granted a total of 19,576 restricted stock units (“RSUs”) representing a right to receive shares of the
Company’s common stock to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and director (the “CEO”), and the CTO, both related parties. The RSUs
vested in two equal installments, each of 9,788 shares, on November 30 and December 31, 2014. The total fair value of these RSUs on the date
of grant was $135, using the quoted closing market share price of $6.90 on the Nasdaq Capital Market on the date of grant. The shares of
common stock underlying the RSUs will be issued upon request of the grantee. As of February 28, 2015, a total of 19,576 RSUs were vested
and outstanding.

b. On November 13, 2014, the Company granted a total of 10,872 RSUs representing a right to receive shares of the Company’s common stock to
four members of the Company's Board of Directors. The RSUs vested on January 1, 2015. The total fair value of these RSUs on the date of
grant was $75, using the quoted closing market share price of $6.90 on the Nasdaq Capital Market on the date of grant.
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ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS Inc.
(A development stage company)
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
U.S. Dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 6 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued):

C. On February 23, 2015, the Company granted a total of 159,696 RSUs representing a right to receive shares of the Company’s common stock to
the Company’s CEO and the CTO, both related parties. The RSUs vest in 23 installments consisting of one installment of 13,308 shares on
February 28, 2015 and 22 equal monthly installments of 6,654 shares each, commencing March 31, 2015. The total fair value of these RSUs on
the date of grant was $728, using the quoted closing market share price of $4.56 on the Nasdaq Capital Market on the date of grant. The shares
of common stock underlying the RSUs will be issued upon request of the grantee. As of February 28, 2015, a total of 13,308 RSUs were vested
and outstanding.

d. On February 23, 2015, the Company granted a total of 88,712 RSUs representing a right to receive shares of the Company’s common stock to
four members of the Company's Board of Directors (22,178 RSUs to each director). The RSUs vest in two equal installments, each of 44,356
shares, on December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016. The total fair value of these RSUs on the date of grant was $405, using the quoted
closing market share price of $4.56 on the Nasdaq Capital Market on the date of grant.

e. On February 23, 2015, the Company granted a total of 46,560 RSUs to an employee of the Subsidiary. The RSUs vest in 23 installments,
consisting of one installment of 3,880 shares on February 28, 2015 and 22 equal monthly installments of 1,940 shares each, commencing March
31, 2015. The total fair value of these RSUs on the date of grant was $212, using the quoted closing market share price of $4.56 on the Nasdaq
Capital Market on the date of grant.

f. On February 23, 2015, the Company granted a total of 16,656 RSUs to employees of the Subsidiary. The RSUs vest in 23 installments,
consisting of one installment of 1,388 shares on February 28, 2015 and 22 equal monthly installments of 694 shares each, commencing March
31, 2015. The total fair value of these RSUs on the date of grant was $76, using the quoted closing market share price of $4.56 on the Nasdaq
Capital Market on the date of grant.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES — TRANSACTIONS:

On July 1, 2008, the Subsidiary entered into two consulting agreements with KNRY Ltd. (“KNRY”), an Israeli company owned by the CEO,
whereby the CEO and the CTO, through KNRY, provide services to the Group (the “Consulting Agreements”). The Consulting Agreements are
both terminable by either party upon 60 days prior written notice. The Consulting Agreements provide that KNRY (i) will be paid a gross
amount of NIS 50,400 per month for each of the CEO and CTO ($14) and (ii) will be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in connection
with performance of the Consulting Agreements.
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NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES — TRANSACTIONS (continued):

On July 17, 2013, the Subsidiary entered into amendments to the Consulting Agreements with KNRY, according to which, the CEQ's and CTQO's
annual payment was set at $250 and $200, respectively, calculated at an exchange rate of NIS 3.6 per U.S. dollar, and in addition to such
payment they were granted the use of a company car and certain cash bonus payments, effective July 1, 2013.

On November 13, 2014, the Subsidiary entered into an amendment to the Consulting Agreements (the “Amendment Agreement”), according to
which, the CEO and the CTO made some representations with regards to their relationship with KNRY and agreed to indemnify the Subsidiary
in certain circumstances as defined in the amendment, among other revisions.

NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On April 2, 2015, the Company entered into an at market issuance sales agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with MLV & Co. LLC (“MLV”)
pursuant to which the Company may issue and sell shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $25 million from time
to time, at its option, through MLV as its sales agent, subject to certain terms and conditions. Any shares sold will be sold pursuant to the
Company’s effective shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-193557), including a prospectus dated April 10, 2014, as
supplemented by a prospectus supplement dated April 2, 2015. The Company will pay MLV a commission of 3.0% of the gross proceeds of the
sale of any shares sold through MLV. To date, no shares have been sold under the Sales Agreement.




ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the condensed
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere herein and in our consolidated financial statements, accompanying notes and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contained in our Annual Report (as defined below).

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (including the section regarding Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other federal securities laws,
regarding our business, clinical trials, financial condition, expenditures, results of operations and prospects. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“plans,” “planned expenditures,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions or variations of such words are intended to identify forward-looking
statements, but are not deemed to represent an all-inclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements as denoted in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q. Additionally, statements concerning future matters are forward-looking statements.

3 2

Although forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q reflect the good faith judgment of our management, such statements
can only be based on facts and factors currently known by us. Consequently, forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties and
actual results and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in or anticipated by the forward-looking statements. Factors that
could cause or contribute to such differences in results and outcomes include, without limitation, those specifically addressed under the heading “Item
1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2014, or our Annual Report, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or the SEC, on November 14, 2014, as well as those discussed elsewhere in our Annual Report and in this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q. Readers are urged not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements in order to reflect any event or circumstance
that may arise after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made
throughout the entirety of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q which attempt to advise interested parties of the risks and factors that may affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Overview of Operations

We are a pharmaceutical company currently engaged in the research and development of innovative pharmaceutical solutions, including an oral
insulin capsule to be used for the treatment of individuals with diabetes, and the use of orally ingestible capsules or pills for delivery of other polypeptides.




Recent business developments
Product Candidates

In September 2013, we submitted a pre-Investigational New Drug, or pre-IND, package to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, for
ORMD-0901, our oral exenatide capsule, for a Phase 2 clinical trial on healthy volunteers and type 2 diabetic patients. We began pre-clinical studies in
November 2014 and expect to begin non-U.S. based Phase Ib trials and IND-enabling studies in the second quarter of calendar year 2015. We then intend to
then file an IND and move immediately and directly into a large Phase II multi-center trial in the U.S.

We originally filed an IND with the FDA in December 2012 for clearance to begin a Phase II clinical trial of ORMD-0801, in order to evaluate the
safety, tolerability and efficacy of our oral insulin capsule on type 2 diabetic volunteers. Because the identical formulation of ORMD-0801 had not yet been
studied in humans at bedtime, in February 2013 the FDA noted concerns about mitigating potential risks of severe hypoglycemia and requested that we
perform a sub-study in a controlled in-patient setting for a one-week period prior to beginning the larger multi-centered Phase II trial. As a result, we
withdrew the original IND and, in April 2013, we submitted a new IND for the Phase Ila sub-study. Following the FDA’s clearance to proceed in May 2013,
we began the Phase Ila sub-study in July 2013. As we announced in January 2014, the Phase Ila sub-study met all primary and secondary endpoints.
Specifically, the Phase Ila study evaluated the pharmacodynamic effects of ORMD-0801 on mean nighttime glucose (determined using a continuous glucose
monitor). The results showed that ORMD-0801 exhibited a sound safety profile, led to reduced mean daytime and nighttime glucose readings and lowered
fasting blood glucose concentrations, when compared to placebo. In addition, no serious adverse events occurred during this study, and the only adverse
events that occurred were not drug related. In light of these results, we believe that we should move forward with the Phase IIb clinical trial on approximately
180 type 2 diabetic patients and it will be conducted in approximately 30 sites in the United States, which we are preparing to initiate in the second quarter of
calendar year 2015. This double-blind, randomized, 28-day study clinical trial will be designed to assess the safety and efficacy of ORMD-0801 and will
investigate ORMD-0801 over a longer treatment period and which will have statistical power to give us greater insight into the drug’s efficacy. We anticipate
the last patient will complete this trial before the end of 2015.

We are also conducting an additional study of our oral insulin capsule on type 2 diabetic volunteers that will be performed at The University of
Texas Health Science Center at San Antonio and University Health System’s Texas Diabetes Institute. The glucose clamp is a method for quantifying insulin
absorption in order to measure a patient’s insulin sensitivity and how well a patient metabolizes glucose. As announced, the first patient has been enrolled and
we anticipate completing the study in the fourth quarter of calendar year 2015.

In February 2014, we submitted a protocol to the FDA to initiate a Phase Ila trial of our oral insulin capsule for type 1 diabetes volunteers. The
protocol was submitted under our existing IND to include both type 1 and type 2 diabetes indications. The double-blind, randomized, placebo controlled,
seven-day study design was carried out at an inpatient setting on 25 type 1 diabetic patients. We began this study in March 2014. As we announced in October
2014, the results showed that ORMD-0801 oral insulin given before meals appeared to be safe and well-tolerated for the dosing regimen in this study.
Although the study was not powered to show statistical significance, there were internally consistent trends observed. Consistent with the timing of
administration, the data showed a decrease in rapid acting insulin, a decrease in post-prandial glucose, a decrease in daytime glucose by continual glucose
monitoring and an increase in post-prandial hypoglycemia in the active group.

The table below gives an overview of our product pipeline:

Phase I Phase II Phase III Timeline

ORMD- : Q1 ’14: Phase I1a completed
0801 Type 2 diabetes I Q2 °15: Phase IIb multi-center study projected
oral insulin initiation

Type 1 diabetes :> Q3 ’14: Phase ITa completed
ORMD- Q3 ’14: Preclinical/IND studies initiated
0901 Type 2 diabetes Q2 °15: Phase Ib ex-US study projected initiation.
oral GLP-1 Q1 ’16: Phase II multi-center study projected initiation




Results of Operations
Comparison of six and three month periods ended February 28, 2015 and 2014

The following table summarizes certain statements of operations data for the Company for the six and three month periods ended February 28,
2015 and 2014 (in thousands of dollars except share and per share data):

Six months ended Three months ended
February 28, February 28,
2015 2014 2015 2014
Research and development expenses, net $ 2,438 $ 1,424 $ 1,136 $ 674
General and administrative expenses 1,138 930 538 512
Financial income, net (43) (115) (37) (71)
Net loss for the period $ 3,533 % 2239 $ 1,637 $ 1,115
Loss per common share — basic and diluted $ 0.34) $ (0.26) $ (0.15) $ (0.12)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 10,482,190 8,531,150 10,826,146 9,127,799

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses include costs directly attributable to the conduct of research and development programs, including the cost of
salaries, payroll taxes, employee benefits, costs of materials, supplies, the cost of services provided by outside contractors, including services related to our
clinical trials, clinical trial expenses, the full cost of manufacturing drug for use in research and preclinical development. All costs associated with research
and development are expensed as incurred.




Clinical trial costs are a significant component of research and development expenses and include costs associated with third-party contractors. We
outsource a substantial portion of our clinical trial activities, utilizing external entities such as contract research organizations, or CROs, independent clinical
investigators, and other third-party service providers to assist us with the execution of our clinical studies.

Clinical activities which relate principally to clinical sites and other administrative functions to manage our clinical trials are performed primarily by
CROs. CROs typically perform most of the start-up activities for our trials, including document preparation, site identification, screening and preparation,
pre-study visits, training, and program management.

Clinical trial and pre-clinical trial expenses include regulatory and scientific consultants’ compensation and fees, research expenses, purchase of
materials, cost of manufacturing of the oral insulin capsules, payments for patient recruitment and treatment, as well as salaries and related expenses of
research and development staff.

Research and development expenses, for the six months ended February 28, 2015 increased by 71% to $2,438,000, from $1,424,000 for the six
months ended February 28, 2014. The increase is mainly attributable to preparing for the initiation of our Phase IIb clinical trial. Stock-based compensation
costs for the six months ended February 28, 2015 totaled $293,000, as compared to $295,000 during the six months ended February 28, 2014.

Research and development expenses, for the three months ended February 28, 2015 increased by 69% to $1,136,000, from $674,000 for the three
months ended February 28, 2014. The increase is mainly attributable to preparing for the initiation of our Phase IIb clinical trial. Stock-based compensation
costs for the three months ended February 28, 2015 totaled $129,000, as compared to $117,000 during the three months ended February 28, 2014.

Government grants

In March 2014, our Israeli subsidiary, Oramed Ltd., was granted a fifth grant amounting to a total amount of NIS 1,206,990 (approximately
$345,000) from the Office of the Chief Scientist of the Ministry of Economy of Israel, or OCS, which was designated for research and development expenses
for the period of November 2013 to October 2014. In September 2014, the OCS extended the period of this fifth year until December 2014. We used the
funds to support further research and development and clinical studies of our oral insulin capsule and oral GLP-1 analog.

In the six and three month periods ended February 28, 2015, we recognized research and development grants in an amount of $17,000, and $1,000,
respectively, and in the six months ended February 28, 2014, we recognized research and development grants in an amount of $139,000. In the three months
ended February 28, 2014, we recognized no grants from the OCS. As of February 28, 2015, we had no contingent liabilities to the OCS.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses include the salaries and related expenses of our management, consulting costs, legal and professional fees,
traveling, business development costs, insurance expenses and other general costs.

General and administrative expenses for the six months ended February 28, 2015 increased by 22% to $1,138,000 from $930,000 for the six months
ended February 28, 2014. The increase in costs incurred related to general and administrative activities during the six months ended February 28, 2015 is
mainly due to the increase in stock-based compensation expenses, which increased from $38,000 during the six months ended February 28, 2014 to $272,000
in the six months ended February 28, 2015, which is attributed to awards granted to directors and officers during the six months ended February 28, 2015.




General and administrative expenses for the three months ended February 28, 2015 increased by 5% to $538,000 from $512,000 for the three months
ended February 28, 2014. The increase in costs incurred related to general and administrative activities during the three months ended February 28, 2015 is
mainly due to the increase in stock-based compensation expenses, which increased from $12,000 during the three months ended February 28, 2014 to
$136,000 in the three months ended February 28, 2015, which is attributed to awards granted to directors and officers during the three months ended February
28, 2015, which was offset by a decrease in salaries and related expenses resulting from cash bonuses to employees paid during the three months ended
February 28, 2014.

Financial income, net

Net financial income decreased by 63% from net income of $115,000 for the six months ended February 28, 2014 to net income of $43,000 for the
six months ended February 28, 2015. The decrease is mainly due to a decrease in income from exchange rate differences and to a decrease in capital gain on
marketable securities, which decreased from $44,000 during the six months ended February 28, 2014 to zero in the six months ended February 28, 2015.

During the three months ended February 28, 2015, net financial income totaled $37,000, compared to $71,000 for the three months ended February
28, 2014. The decrease of 48% in net financial income during the three months ended February 28, 2015, as compared to the three months ended February
28, 2014, is attributable to the same reasons described above.

Other comprehensive income

Subsequent decrease in the fair value of available for sale securities previously written down as impaired for the six months ended February 28, 2015
of $9,000 resulted from the decrease in fair value of the ordinary shares of D.N.A Biomedical Solutions Ltd, or D.N.A, that we hold, and subsequent increase
in the fair value of available for sale securities previously written down as impaired for the six months ended February 28, 2014 of $54,000 resulted from the
increase in fair value of the shares of D.N.A that we hold. Unrealized losses on available for sale securities for the six months ended February 28, 2015 of
$343,000, resulted from the decrease in fair value of our D.N.A ordinary shares. Unrealized gains on available for sale securities for the six months ended
February 28, 2014 of $534,000, resulted from the increase in fair value of our D.N.A ordinary shares. Reclassification adjustments for gains included in net
loss for the six months ended February 28, 2014 of $44,000, resulted from the sale of 1,625,989 of our D.N.A ordinary shares in October and November 2013
and January 2014.

Subsequent increase in the fair value of available for sale securities previously written down as impaired for the three months ended February 28,
2014 of $49,000 resulted from the increase in fair value of the D.N.A ordinary shares, while there was no change in the fair value of available for sale
securities previously written down as impaired for the three months ended February 28, 2015. Unrealized gains on available for sale securities for the three
months ended February 28, 2014 and 2015 of $490,000 and $7,000, respectively, resulted from the increase in fair value of our D.N.A ordinary shares.

Liquidity and capital resources

From inception through February 28, 2015, we have incurred losses in an aggregate amount of $31,353,000. During that period we have financed our
operations through several private placements of our common stock, as well as public offerings of our common stock, raising a total of $40,580,000, net of
transaction costs. During that period we also received cash consideration of $1,870,000 from the exercise of warrants and options. We will seek to obtain
additional financing through similar sources in the future as needed. As of February 28, 2015, we had $1,102,000 of available cash, $16,351,000 of short term
bank deposits, $4,660,000 of long term bank deposits and $695,000 of marketable securities. We anticipate that we will require approximately $10.2 million
to finance our activities during the 12 months following February 28, 2015.




Management continues to evaluate various financing alternatives for funding future research and development activities and general and
administrative expenses through fundraising in the public or private equity markets. Although there is no assurance that we will be successful with those
initiatives, management believes that it will be able to secure the necessary financing as a result of ongoing financing discussions with third party investors,
including the investor in connection with the private placement entered into in November 2014, and existing stockholders, future public offerings, and
additional funding from the OCS. Based on our current cash resources and commitments, including cash received in a private placement in the period ended
February 28, 2015, we believe we will be able to maintain our current planned development activities and the corresponding level of expenditures for at least
the next 12 months and beyond.

As of February 28, 2015, our total current assets were $18,295,000 and our total current liabilities were $605,000. On February 28, 2015, we had a
working capital surplus of $17,690,000 and an accumulated loss of $31,353,000. As of August 31, 2014, our total current assets were $21,778,000 and our
total current liabilities were $973,000. On August 31, 2014, we had a working capital surplus of $20,805,000 and an accumulated loss of $27,820,000. The
decrease in working capital from August 31, 2014 to February 28, 2015 was primarily due to the investment of a portion of the proceeds from our private
placement completed in November 2014 in long term bank deposits.

During the six month period ended February 28, 2015, cash and cash equivalents decreased to $1,102,000 from the $1,762,000 reported as of August
31, 2014, which is due to the reasons described below.

Operating activities used cash of $3,003,000 in the six month period ended February 28, 2015, as compared to $2,231,000 used in the six months
ended February 28, 2014. Cash used for operating activities in the six months ended February 28, 2015 and 2014 primarily consisted of net loss resulting
from research and development and general and administrative expenses, partially offset by stock-based compensation amounts.

During the six month period ended February 28, 2015, we received $93,000 in OCS grants towards our research and development expenses, while
we recognized the amount of $17,000 during such period and $139,000 was recognized in the six month period ended February 28, 2014. During the six
month period ended February 28, 2014, we received $125,000 in OCS grants. The amounts that were received but not recognized during the six month period
ended February 28, 2015 were recognized during fiscal year 2014. The OCS has supported our activity in the past five years.

Investing activities used cash of $2,477,000 in the six month period ended February 28, 2015, as compared to $13,294,000 used in the six month
period ended February 28, 2014. Cash used in investing activities in the six months ended February 28, 2015 consisted primarily of the investment in long
term bank deposits, while cash used in investing activities in the six months ended February 28, 2014 consisted primarily of the acquisition of short-term bank
deposits.

Financing activities provided cash of $4,841,000 in the six month period ended February 28, 2015, as compared to $16,495,000 in the six month
period ended February 28, 2014. Financing activities in the six month periods ended February 28, 2015 and 2014 consisted of proceeds from our issuance of
common stock and proceeds from exercise of warrants and options in each period.

At the Market Issuance Sales Agreement

On April 2, 2015, we entered into an at the market issuance sales agreement, or the Sales Agreement, with MLV & Co. LLC, or MLV, pursuant to
which the Company may issue and sell shares of its common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $25 million from time to time, at its option,
through MLV as its sales agent, subject to certain terms and conditions. Any shares sold will be sold pursuant to the Company’s effective shelf registration
statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-193557), including a prospectus dated April 10, 2014, as supplemented by a prospectus supplement dated April
2, 2015. The Company will pay MLV a commission of 3.0% of the gross proceeds of the sale of any shares sold through MLV. To date, no shares have been
sold under the Sales Agreement.

Off-balance sheet arrangements

As of February 28, 2015, we had no off balance sheet arrangements that have had or that we expect would be reasonably likely to have a future
material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources.




Planned Expenditures

The estimated expenses referenced herein are in accordance with our business plan. Since our technology is still in the development stage, it can be
expected that there will be changes in some budgetary items. Our planned expenditures for the twelve months beginning March 1, 2015 are as follows (in
thousands):

Category Amount
Research and development, net of OCS funds $ 7,933
General and administrative expenses 2,268

Total $ 10,201

In December 2012 and April 2013, we filed IND applications with the FDA for our orally ingested insulin and we are conducting, or planning to
conduct, further clinical studies with our oral exenatide capsule, and others. Our ability to complete these expected activities is dependent on several major
factors including the ability to attract sufficient financing on terms acceptable to us.

ITEM 3 - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

There has been no significant change in our exposure to market risk during the three months ended February 28, 2015. For a discussion of our exposure
to market risk, refer to Part II, Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk,” contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended August 31, 2014.
ITEM 4 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of February 28, 2015. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended February 28, 2015 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.




PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
See Item 2, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — At the Market Issuance Sales Agreement.”
ITEM 6 - EXHIBITS

NuEsisbit

5.1% Opinion of Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LLP.
10.1%* At the Market Issuance Sales Agreement, dated April 2, 2015, by and between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. and MLV & CO. LLC.
23.1* Consent of Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1).

31.1* Certification Statement of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

31.2* Certification Statement of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

32.1%%* Certification Statement of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

32.2%%* Certification Statement of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

101.1* The following financial statements from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2015, formatted in
XBRL: (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iii) Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (v) the Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text and in detail.

* Filed herewith
Hok Furnished herewith




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.
Date: April 2, 2015 By:/s/ Nadav Kidron

Nadav Kidron
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 2, 2015 By:/s/ Yifat Zommer
Yifat Zommer
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
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Exhibit 5.1

S&W sovon MADIOS

April 2, 2015

Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Hi-Tech Park 2/4

Givat-Ram

PO Box 39098

Jerusalem 91390, Israel

Re: Sale of Common Stock pursuant to Registration Statement on Form S-3
Ladies and Gentlemen:

This opinion is furnished to you in connection with a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-193557, the “Registration Statement”), the
prospectus included therein and the related prospectus supplement (such prospectus, as supplemented by such prospectus supplement, the “Prospectus
Supplement”) filed or to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), with respect to the sale of shares of your common stock (the “Shares”) having an aggregate offering price of up to $25,000,000 from time
to time pursuant to that certain At the Market Issuance Sales Agreement, dated April 2, 2015 (the “Sales Agreement”), between you and MLV & Co. LLC.
You are a Delaware corporation and are referred to herein as the “Company.”

We are acting as counsel for the Company in connection with the registration and sale of the Shares. We have examined copies of the Registration Statement
and Prospectus Supplement filed or to be filed with the Commission. We have also examined and relied upon minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors
of the Company as provided to us by the Company, the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company, each as restated and/or amended to date,
and such other documents as we have deemed necessary for purposes of rendering the opinions hereinafter set forth.

In our examination of the foregoing documents, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as
originals, the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as copies, the authenticity of the originals of such latter documents and the
legal competence of all signatories to such documents.

Other than our examination of the documents indicated above, we have made no other examination in connection with this opinion. This opinion is limited to
the General Corporation Law of Delaware, and we express no opinions with respect to the laws of any other jurisdiction. We express no opinion herein
concerning any state securities or blue sky laws.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that when issued and paid for in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Sales
Agreement, the Shares will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

Please note that we are opining only as to the matters expressly set forth herein, and no opinion should be inferred as to any other matters. This opinion is
based upon currently existing statutes, rules, regulations and judicial decisions, as further limited above, and we disclaim any obligation to advise you of any
change in any of these sources of law or subsequent legal or factual developments which might affect any matters or opinions set forth herein.

Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester we

BOSTON NEW YORK TEL AVIV WASHINGTON, DC




Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
April 2, 2015
Page 2 of 2

This opinion is rendered to you in connection with the Registration Statement. This opinion may not be relied upon for any other purpose, or furnished to,
quoted or relied upon by any other person, firm or corporation for any purpose, without our prior written consent, except that (A) this opinion may be
furnished or quoted to judicial or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over you, and (B) this opinion may be relied upon by purchasers and holders of the
Shares currently entitled to rely on it pursuant to applicable provisions of federal securities law.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion with the Commission as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28,
2015 of the Company being filed on the date hereof and to the reference to our firm in the Prospectus Supplement and the Registration Statement. In giving
such consent, we do not hereby admit that we are in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act or the rules and
regulations of the Commission.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LLP

Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LLP




Exhibit 10.1
ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS INC.

Common Stock
(par value $0.012 per share)

At-the-Market Issuance Sales Agreement
April 2, 2015
MLV & Co. LLC
1301 Avenue of the Americas
434 Floor
New York, New York 10019

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), confirms its agreement (this “Agreement”), with MLV & Co. LLC
(“MLV™), as follows:

1. Issuance and Sale of Shares. The Company agrees that, from time to time during the term of this Agreement, on the terms and subject to
the conditions set forth herein, it may issue and sell through MLV, shares (the “Placement Shares”) of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.012 per
share (the “Common Stock™), provided however, that in no event shall the Company issue or sell through MLV such number of Placement Shares that (a) if at
any time General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3 is applicable, would cause the Company to exceed the limitations set forth therein, (b) exceeds the number of
shares of Common Stock registered on the effective Registration Statement (as defined below) pursuant to which the offering is being made, or (c) exceeds
the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock (the lesser of (a), (b) and (c), the “Maximum Amount”). Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained herein, the parties hereto agree that compliance with the limitations set forth in this Section 1 on the number of Placement Shares issued
and sold under this Agreement shall be the sole responsibility of the Company and that MLV shall have no obligation in connection with such compliance.
The issuance and sale of Placement Shares through MLV will be effected pursuant to the Registration Statement (as defined below), although nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed as requiring the Company to use the Registration Statement to issue any Placement Shares.

The Company has filed, in accordance with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and the rules and
regulations thereunder (the “Securities Act Regulations”), with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”), a registration statement on
Form S-3 (File No. 333-193557), including a base prospectus, relating to certain securities, including the Placement Shares to be issued from time to time by
the Company, and which incorporates by reference documents that the Company has filed or will file in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations thereunder (the “Exchange Act Regulations”). The Company has
prepared a prospectus supplement to the base prospectus included as part of such registration statement specifically relating to the Placement Shares (the
“Prospectus Supplement”). The Company will furnish to MLV, for use by MLV, copies of the base prospectus included as part of such registration statement,
as supplemented by the Prospectus Supplement, relating to the Placement Shares. Except where the context otherwise requires, such registration statement,
including all documents filed as part thereof or incorporated by reference therein, and including any information contained in a Prospectus (as defined below)
subsequently filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act or deemed to be a part of such registration statement pursuant to
Rule 430B of the Securities Act, is herein called the “Registration Statement.” The base prospectus, including all documents incorporated or deemed
incorporated therein by reference to the extent such information has not been superseded or modified in accordance with Rule 412 under the Securities Act
(as qualified by Rule 430B(g) of the Securities Act), included in the Registration Statement, as it may be supplemented by the Prospectus Supplement, in the
form in which such base prospectus and/or Prospectus Supplement have most recently been filed by the Company with the Commission pursuant to Rule
424(b) under the Securities Act, is herein called the “Prospectus.” Any reference herein to the Registration Statement, the Prospectus or any amendment or
supplement thereto shall be deemed to refer to and include the documents incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference therein, and any reference herein
to the terms “amend,” “amendment” or “supplement” with respect to the Registration Statement or the Prospectus shall be deemed to refer to and include the
filing after the execution hereof of any document with the Commission deemed to be incorporated by reference therein (the “Incorporated Documents”).




For purposes of this Agreement, all references to the Registration Statement, the Prospectus or to any amendment or supplement thereto shall be
deemed to include the most recent copy filed with the Commission pursuant to its Electronic Data Gathering Analysis and Retrieval System, or if applicable,
the Interactive Data Electronic Application system when used by the Commission (collectively, “EDGAR”).

2. Placements. Each time that the Company wishes to issue and sell Placement Shares hereunder (each, a “Placement”), it will notify MLV by
email notice (or other method mutually agreed to in writing by the Parties) of the number of Placement Shares, the time period during which sales are
requested to be made, any limitation on the number of Placement Shares that may be sold in any one day and any minimum price below which sales may not
be made (a “Placement Notice”), substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule 1. The Placement Notice shall originate from any of the individuals
from the Company set forth on Schedule 3 (with a copy to each of the other individuals from the Company listed on such schedule), and shall be addressed to
each of the individuals from MLV set forth on Schedule 3, as such Schedule 3 may be amended from time to time. The Placement Notice shall be effective
immediately upon receipt by MLV unless and until (i) MLV gives the Company written notice that it declines to accept the terms contained therein for any
reason, in its sole discretion, (ii) the entire amount of the Placement Shares thereunder has been sold, (iii) the Company suspends or terminates the Placement
Notice or (iv) this Agreement has been terminated under the provisions of Section 13. The amount of any discount, commission or other compensation to be
paid by the Company to MLV in connection with the sale of the Placement Shares shall be calculated in accordance with the terms set forth in Schedule 2. It
is expressly acknowledged and agreed that neither the Company nor MLV will have any obligation whatsoever with respect to a Placement or any Placement
Shares unless and until the Company delivers a Placement Notice to MLV and MLV does not decline such Placement Notice pursuant to the terms set forth
above, and then only upon the terms specified therein and herein. In the event of a conflict between the terms of Sections 2 or 3 of this Agreement and the
terms of a Placement Notice, the terms of the Placement Notice will control.




3. Sale of Placement Shares by MLV.

a. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, for the period specified in a Placement Notice, MLV will use its
commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal trading and sales practices and applicable state and federal laws, rules and regulations and the
rules of The NASDAQ Capital Market (the “Exchange”), to sell the Placement Shares up to the amount specified in, and otherwise in accordance with the
terms of, such Placement Notice. MLV will provide written confirmation to the Company no later than the opening of the Trading Day (as defined below)
immediately following the Trading Day on which it has made sales of Placement Shares hereunder setting forth the number of Placement Shares sold on
such day, the compensation payable by the Company to MLV pursuant to Section 2 with respect to such sales, and the Net Proceeds (as defined below)
payable to the Company, with an itemization of the deductions made by MLV (as set forth in Section 5(b)) from the gross proceeds that it receives from such
sales. Subject to the terms of a Placement Notice, MLV may sell Placement Shares by any method permitted by law deemed to be an “at the market offering”
as defined in Rule 415 of the Securities Act, including without limitation sales made directly on the Exchange, on any other existing trading market for the
Common Stock or to or through a market maker. Subject to the terms of a Placement Notice, MLV may also sell Placement Shares by any other method
permitted by law, including but not limited to negotiated transactions, with the Company’s prior written consent. “Trading Day” means any day on which
Common Stock is purchased and sold on the Exchange.

b. During the term of this Agreement, neither MLV nor any of its affiliates or subsidiaries shall engage in (i) any short sale of any
security of the Company, (ii) any sale of any security of the Company that MLV does not own or any sale which is consummated by the delivery of a
security of the Company borrowed by, or for the account of, MLV, or (iii) any market making bidding, stabilization or other trading activity with respect to
the Common Stock or related derivative securities if such activity would be prohibited under Regulation M or other anti-manipulation rules under the
Securities Act. Neither MLV nor any of its affiliates or subsidiaries shall engage in any proprietary trading or trading for MLV’s (or its affiliates’ or
subsidiaries’) own account.

4. Suspension of Sales. The Company or MLV may, upon notice to the other party in writing (including by email correspondence to each of
the individuals of the other party set forth on Schedule 3, if receipt of such correspondence is actually acknowledged by any of the individuals to whom the
notice is sent, other than via auto-reply) or by telephone (confirmed immediately by verifiable facsimile transmission or email correspondence to each of the
individuals of the other party set forth on Schedule 3), suspend any sale of Placement Shares; provided, however, that such suspension shall not affect or
impair any party’s obligations with respect to any Placement Shares sold hereunder prior to the receipt of such notice. Each of the parties agrees that no such
notice under this Section 4 shall be effective against any other party unless it is made to one of the individuals named on Schedule 3 hereto, as such Schedule
may be amended from time to time.




5. Sale and Delivery to MLV;_ Settlement.

a. Sale of Placement Shares. On the basis of the representations and warranties herein contained and subject to the terms and
conditions herein set forth, unless MLV declines to accept the terms of a Placement Notice, and unless the sale of the Placement Shares described therein has
been declined, suspended, or otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, MLV, for the period specified in the Placement Notice,
will use its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal trading and sales practices to sell such Placement Shares up to the amount specified in,
and otherwise in accordance with the terms of, such Placement Notice. The Company acknowledges and agrees that (i) there can be no assurance that MLV
will be successful in selling Placement Shares, (ii) MLV will incur no liability or obligation to the Company or any other person or entity if it does not sell
Placement Shares for any reason other than a failure by MLV to use its commercially reasonable efforts consistent with its normal trading and sales practices
and applicable law and regulations to sell such Placement Shares as required under this Agreement and (iii) MLV shall be under no obligation to purchase
Placement Shares on a principal basis pursuant to this Agreement, except as otherwise agreed by MLV and the Company.

b. Settlement of Placement Shares. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Placement Notice, settlement for sales of Placement
Shares will occur on the third (3rd) Trading Day (or such earlier day as is industry practice for regular-way trading) following the date on which such sales
are made (each, a “Settlement Date”). The amount of proceeds to be delivered to the Company on a Settlement Date against receipt of the Placement Shares
sold (the “Net Proceeds”) will be equal to the aggregate sales price received by MLV, after deduction for (i) MLV’s commission, discount or other
compensation for such sales payable by the Company pursuant to Section 2 hereof, and (ii) any transaction fees imposed by any governmental or self-
regulatory organization in respect of such sales.

C. Delivery of Placement Shares. On or before each Settlement Date, the Company will, or will cause its transfer agent to,
electronically transfer the Placement Shares being sold by crediting MLV’s or its designee’s account (provided MLV shall have given the Company written
notice of such designee at least one Trading Day prior to the Settlement Date) at The Depository Trust Company through its Deposit and Withdrawal at
Custodian System or by such other means of delivery as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties hereto which in all cases shall be freely tradable,
transferable, registered shares in good deliverable form. On each Settlement Date, MLV will deliver the related Net Proceeds in same day funds to an
account designated by the Company on, or prior to, the Settlement Date. The Company agrees that if the Company, or its transfer agent (if applicable),
defaults in its obligation to deliver Placement Shares on a Settlement Date through no fault of MLV, the Company agrees that, in addition to, and in no way
limiting, the rights and obligations set forth in Section_11(a) hereto, it will (i) hold MLV harmless against any loss, claim, damage, or reasonable,
documented expense (including reasonable and documented legal fees and expenses), as incurred, arising out of or in connection with such default by the
Company or its transfer agent (if applicable) and (ii) pay to MLV (without duplication) any commission, discount, or other compensation to which it would
otherwise have been entitled absent such default.




d. Limitations on Offering Size. Under no circumstances shall the Company cause or request the offer or sale of any Placement
Shares if, after giving effect to the sale of such Placement Shares, the aggregate number of, or aggregate gross proceeds of, the Placement Shares sold
pursuant to this Agreement, as applicable, would exceed the lesser of (A) together with all sales of Placement Shares under this Agreement, the Maximum
Amount, (B) the amount available for offer and sale under the currently effective Registration Statement and (C) the amount authorized from time to time to
be issued and sold under this Agreement by the Company’s board of directors, a duly authorized committee thereof or a duly authorized executive
committee, and notified to MLV in writing. Under no circumstances shall the Company cause or request the offer or sale of any Placement Shares pursuant
to this Agreement at a price lower than the minimum price authorized from time to time by the Company’s board of directors, a duly authorized committee
thereof or a duly authorized executive committee, and notified to MLV in writing.

6. Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as disclosed in the Registration Statement, the Prospectus or any Issuer General
Use Free Writing Prospectus (as defined below), if any (including, in each case, the Incorporated Documents), the Company represents and warrants to, and
agrees with MLV that as of the date of this Agreement and as of each Applicable Time (as defined below), unless such representation, warranty or agreement
specifies a different date or time:

a. Registration Statement and Prospectus. The Company and, assuming no act or omission on the part of MLV that would make such
statement untrue, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement meet the requirements for and comply with the conditions for the use of Form S-3 under
the Securities Act. The Registration Statement has been filed with the Commission and has been declared effective under the Securities Act. The Prospectus
Supplement will name MLV as the agent in the section entitled “Plan of Distribution.” The Company has not received, and has no notice of, any order of the
Commission preventing or suspending the use of the Registration Statement, or threatening or instituting proceedings for that purpose. The Registration
Statement and the offer and sale of Placement Shares as contemplated hereby meet the requirements of Rule 415 under the Securities Act and comply in all
material respects with said Rule. Any statutes, regulations, contracts or other documents that are required to be described in the Registration Statement or the
Prospectus or to be filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement have been so described or filed. Copies of the Registration Statement, the Prospectus, and
any such amendments or supplements and all documents incorporated by reference therein that were filed with the Commission on or prior to the date of this
Agreement have been delivered, or are available through EDGAR, to MLV and its counsel. The Company has not distributed and, prior to the later to occur
of each Settlement Date and completion of the distribution of the Placement Shares, will not distribute any offering material in connection with the offering
or sale of the Placement Shares other than the Registration Statement and the Prospectus and any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus to which MLV has
consented, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Common Stock is currently quoted on the Exchange. The Company
has not, in the twelve (12) months preceding the date hereof, received notice from the Exchange to the effect that the Company is not in compliance with the
listing or maintenance requirements of the Exchange. The Company has no reason to believe that it will not in the foreseeable future continue to be in
compliance with all such listing and maintenance requirements.




b. Registration Pursuant to the Exchange Act. The shares of Common Stock are registered pursuant to Section 12(b) under the
Exchange Act. The Company has taken no action designed to, or likely to have the effect of, terminating the registration of the shares of Common Stock
under the Exchange Act, nor has the Company received any notification that the Commission is contemplating terminating such registration.

C. S-3 Eligibility. The Company and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement meet the requirements for, and comply with
the conditions for the use of, Form S-3 under the Securities Act, including but not limited to Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3. The Company is not a shell
company (as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Regulations) and has not been a shell company for at least twelve (12) calendar months previously and
if it has been a shell company at any time previously, has filed current Form 10 information (as defined in Instruction 1.B.6 of Form S-3) with the
Commission at least twelve (12) calendar months previously reflecting its status as an entity that is not a shell company

d. Stock Exchange Listing. The shares of Common Stock are listed on the Exchange, and the Company has taken no action designed
to, or likely to have the effect of, delisting the shares of Common Stock from the Exchange, nor has the Company received any notification that the
Exchange is contemplating terminating such listing. When and if required, the Company will file an application for the Listing of Additional Shares with the
Exchange to list the Placement Shares.

e. No Stop Orders,_etc. Neither the Commission nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any state regulatory authority has issued any
order preventing or suspending the use of the Registration Statement or the Prospectus or has instituted or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened to
institute, any proceedings with respect to such an order. The Company has complied with each request (if any) from the Commission for additional
information.

f. Compliance with Securities Act and 10b-5 Representation.

L. Each of the Registration Statement and any post-effective amendment thereto, at the time it became effective, complied in
all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Securities Act Regulations. Each of the base
prospectus filed as part of the Registration Statement as originally filed or as part of any amendment or supplement thereto,
and the Prospectus, at the time each was filed with the Commission and at the Applicable Time, complied in all material
respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Securities Act Regulations. The Prospectus delivered to MLV
for use in connection with this Offering and the Prospectus was or will be identical to the electronically transmitted copies
thereof filed with the Commission pursuant to EDGAR, except to the extent permitted by Regulation S-T.

ii. Neither the Registration Statement nor any amendment thereto, at its effective time, contained, contains or will contain an
untrue statement of a material fact or omitted, omits or will omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.




il.

iv.

The Disclosure Package, as of the Applicable Time, did not, does not and will not include an untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; and each Issuer Limited Use Free Writing Prospectus hereto does not conflict with
the information contained in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus, and each such Issuer Limited Use Free Writing
Prospectus, as supplemented by and taken together with the Disclosure Package as of the Applicable Time, did not include
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that this representation and
warranty shall not apply to statements made or statements omitted in reliance upon and in conformity with any written
information furnished to the Company with respect to MLV by MLV expressly for use in the Registration Statement or the
Prospectus or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto.

Neither the Prospectus nor any amendment or supplement thereto (including any prospectus wrapper), as of its issue date, at
the time of any filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) or at the Applicable Time, included, includes or will
include an untrue statement of a material fact or omitted, omits or will omit to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided,
however, that this representation and warranty shall not apply to statements made or statements omitted in reliance upon and
in conformity with any written information furnished to the Company with respect to MLV by MLV expressly for use in the
Registration Statement or the Prospectus or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto.

The documents incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, when
they became effective or were filed with the Commission, as the case may be, conformed in all material respects to the
requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as applicable, and the rules and regulations of the Commission
thereunder and none of such documents contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and any further documents so filed and incorporated by reference in the Registration
Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, when such documents become effective or are filed with the
Commission, as the case may be, will conform in all material respects to the requirements of the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, as applicable, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, and will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.




g. Disclosure of Agreements. The agreements and documents described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and
the Prospectus conform in all material respects to the descriptions thereof contained or incorporated by reference therein, and there are no agreements or
other documents required by the Securities Act and the Securities Act Regulations to be described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and
the Prospectus or to be filed with the Commission as exhibits to the Registration Statement or to be incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement,
the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, that have not been so described or filed or incorporated by reference. Each agreement or other instrument
(however characterized or described) to which the Company is a party or by which it is or may be bound or affected that is material to the Company’s
business, has been duly authorized and validly executed by the Company, is in full force and effect in all material respects and is enforceable against the
Company and, to the Company’s knowledge, the other parties thereto, in accordance with its terms, except (i) as such enforceability may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as enforceability of any indemnification or contribution
provision may be limited under the federal and state securities laws, and (iii) that the remedy of specific performance and injunctive and other forms of
equitable relief may be subject to the equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be brought. None of
such agreements or instruments has been assigned by the Company, and neither the Company nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any other party is in default
thereunder and, to the Company’s knowledge, no event has occurred that, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default
thereunder, except for any such default that would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse change in the financial position or
results of operations of the Company or Oramed Ltd., the Company’s only subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”), either individually or taken as a whole, nor any
change or development that, singularly or in the aggregate, would involve a material adverse change, in or affecting the condition (financial or otherwise),
results of operations, business, prospects or assets of the Company or the Subsidiary, either individually or taken as a whole (a “Material Adverse Change”).
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, performance by the Company of the material provisions of such agreements or instruments will not result in a
violation of any existing applicable law, rule, regulation, judgment, order or decree of any governmental agency or court, domestic or foreign, having
jurisdiction over the Company or any of its assets or businesses (each, a “Governmental Entity”), including, without limitation, those relating to
environmental laws and regulations except for any such violation that would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change.

h. Prior Securities Transactions. During the last three (3) years, no securities of the Company have been sold by the Company or by
or on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any person or persons controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Company.




i. Regulations. The disclosures in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus concerning the effects of
federal, state, local and all foreign regulation on the Placement and the Company’s business as currently contemplated are correct in all material respects and
no other such regulations are required to be disclosed in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus which are not so disclosed.

j. No Material Adverse Change. Since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statement, the
Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, except as otherwise specifically stated therein: (i) there has been no material adverse change in the financial position
or results of operations of the Company, nor any change or development that, singularly or in the aggregate, would involve a Material Adverse Change; (ii)
there have been no material transactions entered into by the Company, other than as contemplated pursuant to this Agreement; and (iii) no officer or director
of the Company has resigned from any position with the Company.

k. Recent Securities Transactions,_etc. Subsequent to the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration
Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, and except as may otherwise be indicated or contemplated herein or disclosed in the Registration
Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, the Company has not (i) issued any securities or incurred any liability or obligation, direct or
contingent, for borrowed money; or (ii) declared or paid any dividend or made any other distribution on or in respect to its capital stock.

L. Disclosures in Commission Filings. Since January 1, 2014, (i) none of the Company’s filings with the Commission contained any
untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; and (ii) the Company has made all filings with the Commission required under the Exchange Act and the
Exchange Act Regulations.

m. Independent Accountants. To the knowledge of the Company, Kesselman & Kesselman, a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited (the “Auditor”), whose report is filed with the Commission and included or incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, the
Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, is an independent registered public accounting firm as required by the Securities Act and the Securities Act
Regulations and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board. The Auditor has not, during the periods covered by the financial statements included in
the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, provided to the Company any non-audit services, as such term is used in Section
10A(g) of the Exchange Act.




n. Financial Statements, etc. The financial statements, including the notes thereto and supporting schedules included or incorporated
by reference in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, fairly present the financial position and the results of operations of the
Company at the dates and for the periods to which they apply; and such financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”), consistently applied throughout the periods involved (provided that unaudited interim financial statements are subject to
year-end audit adjustments that are not expected to be material in the aggregate and do not contain all footnotes required by GAAP); and the supporting
schedules included in the Registration Statement present fairly the information required to be stated therein. Except as included therein, no historical or pro
forma financial statements are required to be included or incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package or the Prospectus
under the Securities Act, the Securities Act Regulations, the Exchange Act or the Exchange Act Regulations. All disclosures contained in the Registration
Statement, the Disclosure Package or the Prospectus, or incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference therein, regarding “non-GAAP financial
measures” (as such term is defined by the rules and regulations of the Commission), if any, comply with Regulation G of the Exchange Act and Item 10 of
Regulation S-K of the Securities Act, to the extent applicable. Each of the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus discloses all
material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with
unconsolidated entities or other persons that may have a material current or future effect on the Company’s financial condition, changes in financial
condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, capital resources, or significant components of revenues or expenses. (i) Neither the Company
nor the Subsidiary, has incurred any material liabilities or obligations, direct or contingent, or entered into any material transactions other than in the ordinary
course of business, (ii) the Company has not declared or paid any dividends or made any distribution of any kind with respect to its capital stock, (iii) there
has not been any change in the capital stock of the Company or the Subsidiary, or, other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with the
Company’s prior policies, any grants made under any stock compensation plan, and (iv) there has not been any material adverse change in the Company’s
long-term or short-term debt.

o. Authorized Capital; Options, etc. The Company had, at the date or dates indicated in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure
Package and the Prospectus, the duly authorized, issued and outstanding capitalization as set forth therein. Based on the assumptions stated in the
Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, the Company will have, at the Applicable Time, the adjusted stock capitalization set forth
therein. Except as set forth in, or contemplated by, the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus as of the Applicable Time, there
will be no stock options, warrants, or other rights to purchase or otherwise acquire any authorized, but unissued shares of Common Stock of the Company or
any security convertible or exercisable into shares of Common Stock of the Company, or any contracts or commitments to issue or sell shares of Common

Stock or any such options, warrants, rights or convertible securities.

p. Outstanding Securities. All issued and outstanding securities of the Company issued prior to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement have been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and non-assessable; the holders thereof have no rights of rescission with respect
thereto, and are not subject to personal liability by reason of being such holders; and none of such securities were issued in violation of the preemptive rights
of any holders of any security of the Company or similar contractual rights granted by the Company. The authorized shares of Common Stock conform in all
material respects to all statements relating thereto contained in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus. The offers and sales of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock were at all relevant times either registered under the Securities Act and the applicable state securities or “blue sky”
laws or, based in part on the representations and warranties of the purchasers of such shares of Common Stock, exempt from such registration requirements.
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Securities Sold Pursuant to this Agreement. The Placement Shares, when issued and delivered pursuant to the terms approved by
the board of directors of the Company or a duly authorized committee thereof, or a duly authorized executive committee, against payment therefor as
provided herein, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and will not be subject to the preemptive rights of any holders of any security of the
Company or similar contractual rights granted by the Company, except as otherwise waived by such holders; and all corporate action required to be taken for
the authorization, issuance and sale of the Placement Shares has been duly and validly taken. The Placement Shares conform in all material respects to all
statements with respect thereto contained in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus.

I. Registration Rights of Third Parties. Except as have been waived in writing and delivered to MLV prior to the date hereof or with
respect to securities already registered or as otherwise disclosed in the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, no holders of any securities of the Company
or any rights exercisable for or convertible or exchangeable into securities of the Company have the right to require the Company to register any such
securities of the Company under the Securities Act or to include any such securities in a registration statement to be filed by the Company.

S. Validity and Binding Effect of Agreements. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized by the Company, and, when
executed and delivered, will constitute, the valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms,
except: (i) as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally; (ii) as
enforceability of any indemnification or contribution provision may be limited under the federal and state securities laws; (iii) that the remedy of specific
performance and injunctive and other forms of equitable relief may be subject to the equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any
proceeding therefor may be brought; (iv) as such enforceability may be limited by an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; and (v) as such
enforceability may be limited by the effects of the possible judicial application of foreign laws or foreign governmental or judicial action affecting creditors’
rights.

t. No Conflicts, etc. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and all ancillary documents, the
consummation by the Company of the transactions herein and therein contemplated and the compliance by the Company with the terms hereof and thereof
do not and will not, with or without the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both: (i) result in a material breach of, or conflict with any of the terms and
provisions of, or constitute a material default under, or result in the creation, modification, termination or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance
upon any property or assets of the Company pursuant to the terms of any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party; (ii) result in any
violation of the provisions of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation (as the same may be amended or restated from time to time, the “Charter”) or the
amended and restated by-laws of the Company; or (iii) violate any existing applicable law, rule, regulation, judgment, order or decree of any Governmental
Entity (including, without limitation, those promulgated by the Food and Drug Administration of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the
“FDA”) or by any foreign, federal, state or local regulatory authority performing functions similar to those performed by the FDA), except in the case of
clause (iii), for any such violation that would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change.
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u. No Defaults; Violations. No material default exists in the due performance and observance of any term, covenant or condition of
any material license, contract, indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, note, loan or credit agreement, or any other agreement or instrument evidencing an
obligation for borrowed money, or any other material agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which the Company may be bound or
to which any of the properties or assets of the Company is subject. The Company is not in violation of any term or provision of its Charter, or in violation of
any franchise, license, permit, applicable law, rule, regulation, judgment or decree of any Governmental Entity.

V. Conduct of Business. The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority, and has all necessary authorizations,
approvals, orders, licenses, certificates and permits of and from all governmental regulatory officials and bodies that it needs as of the date hereof to conduct
its business purpose as described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus except where the failure to have any such
authorization, approval, order, license, certificate or permit would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change.

W. Transactions Contemplated Herein. The Company has all corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry
out the provisions and conditions hereof, and all consents, authorizations, approvals and orders required in connection therewith have been obtained. No
consent, authorization or order of, and no filing with, any court, government agency or other body is required for the valid issuance, sale and delivery of the
Placement Shares and the consummation of the transactions and agreements contemplated by this Agreement and as contemplated by the Registration
Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, except with respect to applicable federal and state securities laws and the rules and regulations of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“EINRA™).

X. D&O Questionnaires. To the Company’s knowledge, all information contained in the questionnaires (the “Questionnaires™)
completed by each of the Company’s directors and officers immediately prior to the Offering (the “Insiders”) as supplemented by all information concerning
the Company’s directors, officers and principal shareholders as described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, provided
to MLV, is true and correct in all material respects and the Company has not become aware of any information which would cause the information disclosed
in the Questionnaires to become materially inaccurate and incorrect.

y. Litigation;_Governmental Proceedings. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, arbitration, investigation, litigation or
governmental proceeding pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened against, or involving the Company or, to the Company’s knowledge, any
executive officer or director which has not been disclosed in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, except for any such
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, arbitration, investigation, litigation or governmental proceeding that would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Change, or in connection with the Company’s listing application for the listing of the Placement Shares on the Exchange.
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z. Good Standing. The Company has been duly organized and is validly existing as a corporation and is in good standing under the
laws of the State of Delaware as of the date hereof, and is duly qualified to do business and is in good standing in each other jurisdiction in which its
ownership or lease of property or the conduct of business requires such qualification, except where the failure to qualify, singularly or in the aggregate,
would not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change.

aa. Insurance. The Company carries or is entitled to the benefits of insurance, with reputable insurers, in such amounts and covering
such risks which the Company believes are adequate, and all such insurance is in full force and effect. The Company has no reason to believe that it will not
be able (i) to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such policies expire or (ii) to obtain comparable coverage from similar institutions as may be
necessary or appropriate to conduct its business as now conducted and at a cost that would not result in a Material Adverse Change.

bb. Finder’s Fees. There are no claims, payments, arrangements, agreements or understandings relating to the payment of a finder’s,
consulting or origination fee by the Company or any Insider with respect to the sale of the Placement Shares hereunder or any other arrangements,
agreements or understandings of the Company or, to the Company’s knowledge, any of its shareholders that may affect MLV’s compensation, as determined
by FINRA.

cc. Payments Within Twelve (12) Months. The Company has not made any direct or indirect payments (in cash, securities or
otherwise) to: (i) any person, as a finder’s fee, consulting fee or otherwise, solely in consideration of such person raising capital for the Company or
introducing to the Company persons who raised or provided capital to the Company; (ii) any FINRA member; or (iii) any person or entity that has any direct
or indirect affiliation or association with any FINRA member, within twelve (12) months prior to the date of this Agreement, other than the payment to MLV
as provided hereunder in connection with the Offering.

dd. Use of Proceeds. None of the net proceeds of the Offering will be paid by the Company to any participating FINRA member or its
affiliates, except as specifically authorized herein.

ee. FINRA Affiliation. Neither the Company nor any of its affiliates (within the meaning of FINRA’s Conduct Rule 5121(f)(1))
directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, or is an associated person (within the meaning of Article I, Section 1(ee) of

the By-laws of FINRA) of, any member firm of FINRA.

ff. Information. All information provided by the Company in its FINRA Questionnaire to MLV specifically for use by MLV or its
counsel in connection with its Public Offering System filings (and related disclosure) with FINRA is true, correct and complete in all material respects.
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gg. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary or, to the Company’s knowledge, any director, officer,
agent, employee or affiliate of the Company or the Subsidiary or any other person acting on behalf of the Company or the Subsidiary, has, directly or
indirectly, given or agreed to give any money, gift or similar benefit (other than legal price concessions to customers in the ordinary course of business) to
any customer, supplier, employee or agent of a customer or supplier, or official or employee of any governmental agency or instrumentality of any
government (domestic or foreign) or any political party or candidate for office (domestic or foreign) or other person who was, is, or may be in a position to
help or hinder the business of the Company (or assist it in connection with any actual or proposed transaction) that (i) might subject the Company to any
damage or penalty in any civil, criminal or governmental litigation or proceeding, (ii) if not given in the past, might have had a Material Adverse Change or
(iii) if not continued in the future, might adversely affect the assets, business, operations or prospects of the Company. The Company has taken reasonable
steps to ensure that its accounting controls and procedures are sufficient to cause the Company to comply in all material respects with the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act of 1977, as amended or Title 5 of the Israeli Penalty Law (Bribery Transactions).

hh. Compliance with OFAC. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary or, to the Company’s knowledge, any director, officer, agent,
employee or affiliate of the Company or the Subsidiary or any other person acting on behalf of the Company or the Subsidiary, is currently subject to any
U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“OFAC”), and the Company will not, directly
or indirectly, use the proceeds of the Offering hereunder, or lend, contribute or otherwise make available such proceeds to any subsidiary, joint venture
partner or other person or entity, for the purpose of financing the activities of any person currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by OFAC.

ii. Money Laundering Laws. The operations of the Company and the Subsidiary are and have been conducted at all times in
compliance with applicable financial recordkeeping and reporting requirements of the Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of 1970, as
amended, the Israeli Prohibition on Money Laundering Law, 2000, the money laundering statutes of all jurisdictions, the rules and regulations thereunder and
any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any Governmental Entity (collectively, the “Money_Laundering
Laws”); and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any Governmental Entity involving the Company or the Subsidiary with respect to the Money
Laundering Laws is pending or, to the best knowledge of the Company, threatened.
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ij- Regulatory. All preclinical and clinical studies conducted by or on behalf of the Company that are material to the Company or the
Subsidiary, taken as a whole, are or have been adequately described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus in all material
respects. The clinical and preclinical studies conducted by or on behalf of the Company or the Subsidiary that are described in the Registration Statement,
the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus or the results of which are referred to in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus
were and, if still ongoing, are being conducted in material compliance with all laws and regulations applicable thereto in the jurisdictions in which they are
being conducted and with all laws and regulations applicable to preclinical and clinical studies from which data will be submitted to support marketing
approval. The descriptions in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus of the results of such studies are accurate and complete
in all material respects and fairly present the data derived from such studies, and the Company has no knowledge of, or reason to believe that, any large well-
controlled clinical study the aggregate results of which are inconsistent with or otherwise call into question the results of any clinical study conducted by or
on behalf of the Company or the Subsidiary that are described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus or the results of
which are referred to in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary has received any
written notices or statements from the FDA, the European Medicines Agency (the “EMA”) or any other governmental agency or authority imposing,
requiring, requesting or suggesting a clinical hold, termination, suspension or material modification for or of any clinical or preclinical studies that are
described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus or the results of which are referred to in the Registration Statement, the
Disclosure Package and the Prospectus. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary has received any written notices or statements from the FDA, the EMA or
any other governmental agency, and otherwise has any knowledge of, or reason to believe that, (i) any investigational new drug application for potential
product of the Company or the Subsidiary is or has been rejected or determined to be non-approvable or conditionally approvable; and (ii) any license,
approval, permit or authorization to conduct any clinical trial of any potential product of the Company or the Subsidiary has been, will be or may be
suspended, revoked, modified or limited.

kk. Subsidiary. The Company does not have any direct or indirect subsidiaries other than Oramed Ltd. The Subsidiary is duly
organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Israel, and the Subsidiary is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which its ownership or lease
of property or the conduct of business requires such qualification, except where the failure to qualify would not have a Material Adverse Change. The
Company’s ownership and control of the Subsidiary is as described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus.

11 Related Party Transactions. There are no business relationships or related party transactions involving the Company or any other
person required to be described or incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus that have not been
described or incorporated by reference as required.

mm. The qualifications of the persons serving as board members and the overall composition of the board comply with the Exchange
Act, the Exchange Act Regulations, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules promulgated thereunder (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) applicable to the
Company and the listing rules of the Exchange. At least one member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors qualifies as an “audit committee
financial expert,” as such term is defined under Regulation S-K and the listing rules of the Exchange. In addition, at least a majority of the persons serving
on the Board of Directors qualify as “independent,” as defined under the listing rules of the Exchange.
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nn. Disclosure Controls. The Company has developed and currently maintains disclosure controls and procedures that will comply
with Rule 13a-15 or 15d-15 under the Exchange Act, and such controls and procedures are effective to ensure that all material information concerning the
Company will be made known on a timely basis to the individuals responsible for the preparation of the Company’s Exchange Act filings and other public
disclosure documents.

00. Compliance. The Company is, or at the Applicable Time will be, in material compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act applicable to it, and has implemented or will implement such programs and taken reasonable steps to ensure the Company’s future compliance (not later
than the relevant statutory and regulatory deadlines therefor) with all of the material provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Pp- Accounting Controls. The Company maintains systems of “internal control over financial reporting” (as defined under Rules 13a-
15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act Regulations) that comply with the requirements of the Exchange Act and have been designed by, or under the
supervision of, their respective principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP, including, but not
limited to, internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general
or specific authorizations; (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain
asset accountability; (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization; and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. The
Company is not aware of any material weaknesses in its internal controls. The Company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company have been advised of: (i) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting
which are known to the Company’s management and that have adversely affected or are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’ ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and (ii) any fraud known to the Company’s management, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

qq. No Investment Company Status. The Company is not and, after giving effect to the Offering and the application of the proceeds
thereof as described in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, will not be, an “investment company,” as defined in the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

IT. No Labor Disputes. No labor related litigation and no labor dispute with the employees of the Company or the Subsidiary exists
or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent. The Company and the Subsidiary are in compliance in all material respects with the labor and
employment laws applicable to their employees.
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Ss. Intellectual Property. The Company and the Subsidiary own or possess or have valid rights to use all patents, patent applications,
trademarks, service marks, trade names, trademark registrations, service mark registrations, copyrights, licenses, inventions, trade secrets and similar rights
(“Intellectual Property Rights”) necessary for the conduct of the business of the Company and the Subsidiary as currently carried on and as described in the
Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus. To the knowledge of the Company, no action or use by the Company or the Subsidiary
necessary for the conduct of its business as currently carried on and as described in the Registration Statement and the Prospectus will involve or give rise to
any infringement of, or license or similar fees for, any Intellectual Property Rights of others. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary has received any
notice alleging any such infringement, fee or conflict with asserted Intellectual Property Rights of others. Except as would not reasonably be expected to
result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Material Adverse Change (i) to the knowledge of the Company, there is no infringement, misappropriation or
violation by third parties of any of the Intellectual Property Rights owned by the Company or the Subsidiary; (ii) there is no pending or, to the knowledge of
the Company, threatened action, suit, proceeding or claim by others challenging the rights of the Company in or to any such Intellectual Property Rights, and
the Company is unaware of any facts which would form a reasonable basis for any such claim, that would, individually or in the aggregate, together with any
other claims in this Section 6(ss), reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change; (iii) the Intellectual Property Rights owned by the
Company or the Subsidiary and, to the knowledge of the Company, the Intellectual Property Rights licensed to the Company or the Subsidiary have not been
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, and there is no pending or, to the Company’s knowledge,
threatened action, suit, proceeding or claim by others challenging the validity or scope of any such Intellectual Property Rights, and the Company is unaware
of any facts which would form a reasonable basis for any such claim that would, individually or in the aggregate, together with any other claims in this
Section 6(ss), reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change; (iv) there is no pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened action,
suit, proceeding or claim by others that the Company or the Subsidiary infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates any Intellectual Property Rights or
other proprietary rights of others, the Company or the Subsidiary has not received any written notice of such claim and the Company is unaware of any other
facts which would form a reasonable basis for any such claim that would, individually or in the aggregate, together with any other claims in this Section
6(ss), reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Change; and (v) to the Company’s knowledge, no employee of the Company or the Subsidiary
is in or has ever been in violation in any material respect of any term of any employment contract, patent disclosure agreement, invention assignment
agreement, non-competition agreement, non-solicitation agreement, nondisclosure agreement or any restrictive covenant to or with a former employer where
the basis of such violation relates to such employee’s employment with the Company or the Subsidiary, or actions undertaken by the employee while
employed with the Company and could reasonably be expected to result, individually or in the aggregate, in a Material Adverse Change. To the Company’s
knowledge, all material technical information developed by and belonging to the Company or the Subsidiary which has not been patented has been kept
confidential. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary is a party to or bound by any options, licenses or agreements with respect to the Intellectual Property
Rights of any other person or entity that are required to be set forth in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus and are not
described therein. The Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and the Prospectus contain in all material respects the same description of the matters
set forth in the preceding sentence. None of the technology employed by the Company or the Subsidiary has been obtained or is being used by the Company
of the Subsidiary in violation of any contractual obligation binding on the Company or the Subsidiary or, to the Company’s knowledge, any of its officers,
directors or employees, or otherwise in violation of the rights of any persons. Other than as set forth in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package or
the Prospectus, neither the Company nor the Subsidiary has received claims for royalties or other compensation from individuals, including employees of the
Company, who made inventive contributions to Company’s technology or products, and neither Company or the Subsidiary will have no obligation to pay
royalties or other compensation to such individuals on account of such inventive contributions.
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tt. Taxes. Each of the Company and the Subsidiary has filed all returns (as hereinafter defined) required to be filed with taxing
authorities prior to the date hereof or has duly obtained extensions of time for the filing thereof. Each of the Company and the Subsidiary has paid all taxes
(as hereinafter defined) shown as due on such returns that were filed and has paid all taxes imposed on or assessed against the Company or the
Subsidiary. The provisions for taxes payable, if any, shown on the financial statements filed with or as part of the Registration Statement are sufficient for all
accrued and unpaid taxes, whether or not disputed, and for all periods to and including the dates of such consolidated financial statements. Except as
disclosed in writing to MLV, (i) no issues have been raised (and are currently pending) by any taxing authority in connection with any of the returns or taxes
asserted as due from the Company or the Subsidiary, and (ii) no waivers of statutes of limitation with respect to the returns or collection of taxes have been
given by or requested from the Company or the Subsidiary. The term “taxes” mean all federal, state, local, foreign and other net income, gross income, gross
receipts, sales, use, ad valorem, transfer, franchise, profits, license, lease, service, service use, withholding, payroll, employment, national insurance, value
added, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, property, windfall profits, customs, duties or other taxes, fees, assessments or charges of any kind
whatever, together with any interest and any penalties, inflation linkages, additions to tax or additional amounts with respect thereto. The term “returns”
means all returns, declarations, reports, statements and other documents required to be filed in respect to taxes.

uu. Environmental Matters. Except as would not, singly or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse
Change, (i) each of the Company and the Subsidiary is not in violation of any federal, state, local or foreign statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, code,
policy or rule of common law or any judicial or administrative interpretation thereof, including any judicial or administrative order, consent, decree or
judgment, relating to pollution or protection of human health, the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, groundwater, land
surface or subsurface strata) or wildlife, including, without limitation, laws and regulations relating to the release or threatened release of chemicals,
pollutants, contaminants, wastes, toxic substances, hazardous substances, petroleum or petroleum products (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) or to the
manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials (collectively, “Environmental Laws”),
(ii) each of the Company and the Subsidiary has all permits, authorizations and approvals required under any applicable Environmental Laws and is in
compliance with their requirements, (iii) there are no pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened administrative, regulatory or judicial actions,
suits, demands, demand letters, claims, liens, notices of noncompliance or violation, investigation or proceedings relating to any Environmental Law against
the Company or the Subsidiary and (iv) to the Company’s knowledge, there are no events or circumstances that might reasonably be expected to form the
basis of an order for clean-up or remediation, or an action, suit or proceeding by any private party or governmental body or agency, against or affecting the
Company or the Subsidiary relating to Hazardous Materials or any Environmental Laws.
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V. ERISA Compliance. Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary has any employees in the United States and is not subject to
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

WW. Compliance with Laws. Each of the Company and the Subsidiary: (i) is and at all times has been in compliance with all statutes,
rules, or regulations applicable to the ownership, testing, development, manufacture, packaging, processing, use, distribution, marketing, labeling,
promotion, sale, offer for sale, storage, import, export or disposal of any product manufactured or distributed by the Company (“Applicable Laws”), except
as could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Change; (ii) has not received any FDA Form 483, notice of
adverse finding, warning letter, untitled letter or other correspondence or notice from the FDA or any other governmental authority alleging or asserting
noncompliance with any Applicable Laws or any licenses, certificates, approvals, clearances, authorizations, permits and supplements or amendments thereto
required by any such Applicable Laws (“Authorizations”); (iii) possesses all material Authorizations and such Authorizations are valid and in full force and
effect and are not in material violation of any term of any such Authorizations; (iv) has not received notice of any claim, action, suit, proceeding, hearing,
enforcement, investigation, arbitration or other action from any governmental authority or third party alleging that any product operation or activity is in
violation of any Applicable Laws or Authorizations and has no knowledge that any such governmental authority or third party is considering any such claim,
litigation, arbitration, action, suit, investigation or proceeding; (v) has not received notice that any governmental authority has taken, is taking or intends to
take action to limit, suspend, modify or revoke any Authorizations and has no knowledge that any such governmental authority is considering such action;
(vi) has filed, obtained, maintained or submitted all material reports, documents, forms, notices, applications, records, claims, submissions and supplements
or amendments as required by any Applicable Laws or Authorizations and that all such reports, documents, forms, notices, applications, records, claims,
submissions and supplements or amendments were complete and correct on the date filed (or were corrected or supplemented by a subsequent submission);
and (vii) has not, either voluntarily or involuntarily, initiated, conducted, or issued or caused to be initiated, conducted or issued, any recall, market
withdrawal or replacement, safety alert, post-sale warning, “dear doctor” letter, or other notice or action relating to the alleged lack of safety or efficacy of
any product or any alleged product defect or violation and, to the Company’s knowledge, no third party has initiated, conducted or intends to initiate any
such notice or action.

XX. Ineligible Issuer. At the time of filing the Registration Statement and any post-effective amendment thereto, at the time of
effectiveness of the Registration Statement and any amendment thereto, at the earliest time thereafter that the Company or another offering participant made
a bona fide offer (within the meaning of Rule 164(h)(2) of the Securities Act Regulations) of the Placement Shares and at the date hereof, the Company was
not and is not an “ineligible issuer,” as defined in Rule 405, without taking account of any determination by the Commission pursuant to Rule 405 that it is
not necessary that the Company be considered an ineligible issuer.
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vy. Forward-Looking Statements. No forward-looking statement (within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section
21E of the Exchange Act) contained in the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package or the Prospectus has been made or reaffirmed without a
reasonable basis or has been disclosed other than in good faith.

7z. Margin Securities. The Company owns no “margin securities” as that term is defined in Regulation U of the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”), and none of the proceeds of Offering will be used, directly or indirectly, for the purpose of
purchasing or carrying any margin security, for the purpose of reducing or retiring any indebtedness which was originally incurred to purchase or carry any
margin security or for any other purpose which might cause any of the shares of Common Stock to be considered a “purpose credit” within the meanings of
Regulation T, U or X of the Federal Reserve Board.

aaa. Industry Data. The statistical and market-related data included in each of the Registration Statement, the Disclosure Package and
the Prospectus are based on or derived from sources that the Company reasonably and in good faith believes are reliable and accurate or represent the
Company’s good faith estimates that are made on the basis of data derived from such sources.

bbb. Exchange Act Reports. The Company has filed in a timely manner all reports required to be filed pursuant to Sections 13(a),
13(e), 14 and 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the preceding twelve (12) months (except to the extent that Section 15(d) requires reports to be filed pursuant
to Sections 13(d) and 13(g) of the Exchange Act, which shall be governed by the next clause of this sentence); and the Company has filed in a timely manner
all reports required to be filed pursuant to Sections 13(d) and 13(g) of the Exchange Act since September 1, 2010, except where the failure to timely file
could not reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to result in a Material Adverse Change.

ccc. Currency of Registration Statement. The Applicable Time is not more than three (3) years subsequent to the initial effective date
of the Registration Statement.

ddd.  Israeli Law Matters.

i The Subsidiary does not have any immunity from the jurisdiction of any court or from any legal process (whether through
service or notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution or otherwise) under the laws of the State of
Israel.
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ii. No consent, approval, authorization or order of, or filing, qualification or registration with, any Israeli court or governmental
agency or body, which has not been made, obtained or taken and is not in full force and effect, is required for the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Company, the offer or sale of the Placement Shares or the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, other than the obligation to file certain information
following the Applicable Time with the Israeli Investment Center and the Office of the Chief Scientist in the Israeli Ministry
of Economy (the “Chief Scientist”).

iii. ~ Neither the Company nor the Subsidiary is in violation of any condition or requirement stipulated (A) by any instruments of
approval, granted to it by the Chief Scientist, the Law for Encouragement of Industrial Research and Development, 5744-
1984 (the “R&D ILaw”), or the Bio-Jerusalem Fund (the “Bio-Jerusalem Fund”) with respect to any research and
development grants or benefits given to the Company or the Subsidiary by the Chief Scientist or the Bio-Jerusalem Fund or
(B) with respect to any instrument of approval granted to it by the Investment Center of the Ministry of Industry, Trade and
Labor of the State of Israel with respect to grants or benefits given to the Company and the Subsidiary. Neither the
Company nor the Subsidiary has received any notice denying, revoking or modifying any “approved enterprise” or
“benefited enterprise” or “privileged enterprise” status with respect to any of the Company’s or the Subsidiary’s facilities or
operations or with respect to any grants or benefits from the Chief Scientist, the Investment Center or the Bio-Jerusalem
Fund (including, in all such cases, notice of proceedings or investigations related thereto). All information supplied by the
Company or the Subsidiary with respect to the applications or notifications relating to such “approved enterprise” status,
“privileged enterprise status” and “benefitted enterprise” status and to grants and benefits from the Chief Scientist, the
Investment Center and/or the Bio-Jerusalem Fund was true, correct and complete in all material respects when supplied to
the appropriate authorities.

iv.  No proceedings have been instituted in the State of Israel for the dissolution of the Subsidiary.

Any certificate signed by an officer of the Company and delivered to MLV or to counsel for MLV pursuant to or in connection with
this Agreement shall be deemed to be a representation and warranty by the Company, as applicable, to MLV as to the matters set forth therein.
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7. Covenants of the Company. The Company covenants and agrees with MLV that:

a. Registration Statement Amendments. After the date of this Agreement and during any period in which a prospectus relating to any
Placement Shares is required to be delivered by MLV under the Securities Act (including in circumstances where such requirement may be satisfied pursuant
to Rule 172 under the Securities Act) (the “Prospectus Delivery Period”) (i) the Company will notify MLV promptly of the time when any subsequent
amendment to the Registration Statement, other than documents incorporated by reference or amendments not related to any Placement, has been filed with
the Commission and/or has become effective or any subsequent supplement to the Prospectus has been filed and of any request by the Commission for any
amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or Prospectus related to the Placement or for additional information related to the Placement; (ii) the
Company will prepare and file with the Commission, promptly upon MLV’s request, any amendments or supplements to the Registration Statement or
Prospectus that, in MLV’s reasonable opinion, may be necessary or advisable in connection with the distribution of the Placement Shares by MLV (provided,
however, that the only remedy MLV shall have with respect to the failure to make such filing shall be to cease making sales under this Agreement until such
amendment or supplement is filed); (iii) the Company will not file any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement or Prospectus relating to the
Placement Shares or a security convertible into the Placement Shares unless a copy thereof has been submitted to MLV within a reasonable period of time
before the filing and MLV has not reasonably and in good faith objected thereto in writing within two Business Days of receiving such copy (provided,
however, that (A) the failure of MLV to make such objection shall not relieve the Company of any obligation or liability hereunder, or affect MLV’s right to
rely on the representations and warranties made by the Company in this Agreement and (B) the Company has no obligation to provide MLV any advance
copy of such filing or to provide MLV an opportunity to object to such filing if the filing does not name MLV or does not directly relate to the transaction
herein provided; and provided, further, that the only remedy MLV shall have with respect to the failure by the Company to obtain such consent shall be to
cease making sales under this Agreement) and the Company will furnish to MLV at the time of filing thereof a copy of any document that upon filing is
deemed to be incorporated by reference into the Registration Statement or Prospectus, except for those documents available via EDGAR; and (iv) the
Company will cause each amendment or supplement to the Prospectus to be filed with the Commission as required pursuant to the applicable paragraph of
Rule 424(b) of the Securities Act or, in the case of any document to be incorporated therein by reference, to be filed with the Commission as required
pursuant to the Exchange Act, within the time period prescribed (the determination to file or not file any amendment or supplement with the Commission
under this Section 7(a), based on the Company’s reasonable opinion or reasonable objections, shall be made exclusively by the Company).

b. Notice of Commission Stop Orders. The Company will advise MLV, promptly after it receives notice or obtains knowledge
thereof, of the issuance or threatened issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement, of the
suspension of the qualification of the Placement Shares for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or of the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for any
such purpose; and it will promptly use its commercially reasonable efforts to prevent the issuance of any stop order or to obtain its withdrawal if such a stop
order should be issued. The Company will advise MLV promptly after it receives any request by the Commission for any amendments to the Registration
Statement or any amendment or supplements to the Prospectus or any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus or for additional information related to the offering of
the Placement Shares or for additional information related to the Registration Statement, the Prospectus or any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus.
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c. Delivery_of Prospectus;_Subsequent Changes. During the Prospectus Delivery Period, the Company will use commercially
reasonable efforts to comply in all material respects with all requirements imposed upon it by the Securities Act, as from time to time in force, and to file on
or before their respective due dates all reports and any definitive proxy or information statements required to be filed by the Company with the Commission
pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, 15(d) or any other provision of or under the Exchange Act. If the Company has omitted any information from the
Registration Statement pursuant to Rule 430A under the Securities Act, it will use its commercially reasonable efforts to comply with the provisions of and
make all requisite filings with the Commission pursuant to said Rule 430A and to notify MLV promptly of all such filings. If during the Prospectus Delivery
Period any event occurs as a result of which the Prospectus as then amended or supplemented would include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances then existing, not misleading, or if during such Prospectus
Delivery Period it is necessary to amend or supplement the Registration Statement or Prospectus to comply with the Securities Act, the Company will
promptly notify MLV to suspend the offering of Placement Shares during such period and the Company will promptly amend or supplement the Registration
Statement or Prospectus (at the expense of the Company) so as to correct such statement or omission or effect such compliance; provided, however, that the
Company may delay the filing of any amendment or supplement, if in the judgment of the Company, it is in the best interest of the Company to do so.

d. Listing of Placement Shares. During the Prospectus Delivery Period, the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to
cause the Placement Shares to be listed on the Exchange and to qualify the Placement Shares for sale under the securities laws of such jurisdictions in the
United States as MLV reasonably designates and to continue such qualifications in effect so long as required for the distribution of the Placement Shares;
provided, however, that the Company shall not be required in connection therewith to qualify as a foreign corporation or dealer in securities or file a general
consent to service of process in any jurisdiction.

e. Delivery of Registration Statement and Prospectus. The Company will furnish to MLV and its counsel (at the reasonable expense
of the Company) copies of the Registration Statement, the Prospectus (including all documents incorporated by reference therein) and all amendments and
supplements to the Registration Statement or Prospectus that are filed with the Commission during the Prospectus Delivery Period (including all documents
filed with the Commission during such period that are deemed to be incorporated by reference therein), in each case as soon as reasonably practicable and in
such quantities as MLV may from time to time reasonably request and, at MLV’s request, will also furnish copies of the Prospectus to each exchange or
market on which sales of the Placement Shares may be made; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to furnish any document (other than
the Prospectus) to MLV to the extent such document is available on EDGAR.
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f. Earning Statement. The Company will make generally available to its security holders as soon as practicable, but in any event not
later than fifteen (15) months after the end of the Company’s current fiscal quarter, an earning statement covering a 12-month period that satisfies the
provisions of Section 11(a) and Rule 158 of the Securities Act.

g. Use of Proceeds. The Company will use the Net Proceeds as described in the Prospectus in the section entitled “Use of Proceeds.”

h. Notice of Other Sales. Without the prior written consent of MLV, the Company will not, directly or indirectly, offer to sell, sell,
contract to sell, grant any option to sell or otherwise dispose of any Common Stock (other than the Placement Shares offered pursuant to this Agreement) or
securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock, warrants or any rights to purchase or acquire, Common Stock during the period beginning on
the date on which any Placement Notice is delivered to MLV hereunder and ending on the third (3rd) Trading Day immediately following the final
Settlement Date with respect to Placement Shares sold pursuant to such Placement Notice (or, if the Placement Notice has been terminated or suspended
prior to the sale of all Placement Shares covered by a Placement Notice, the date of such suspension or termination); and will not directly or indirectly in any
other “at-the-market” or continuous equity transaction offer to sell, sell, contract to sell, grant any option to sell or otherwise dispose of any Common Stock
(other than the Placement Shares offered pursuant to this Agreement) or securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock, warrants or any
rights to purchase or acquire, Common Stock prior to the termination of this Agreement; provided, however, that such restrictions will not be required in
connection with the Company’s issuance or sale of (i) Common Stock, options to purchase Common Stock, restricted stock units or Common Stock issuable
upon the exercise of options or settlement of restricted stock units, pursuant to any employee or director stock option or benefits plan, stock ownership plan
or dividend reinvestment plan (but not Common Stock subject to a waiver to exceed plan limits in its dividend reinvestment plan) of the Company whether
now in effect or hereafter implemented; (ii) Common Stock issuable upon conversion of securities or the exercise of warrants, options or other rights in
effect or outstanding, and disclosed in filings by the Company available on EDGAR or otherwise in writing to MLV, and (iii) Common Stock, or securities
convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock, offered and sold in a privately negotiated transaction to vendors, consultants, service providers,
customers, strategic partners or potential strategic partners or other investors conducted in a manner so as not to be integrated with the offering of Common
Stock hereby.

i Change of Circumstances. The Company will, at any time during the pendency of a Placement Notice advise MLV promptly after
it shall have received notice or obtained knowledge thereof, of any information or fact that would alter or affect in any material respect any opinion,
certificate, letter or other document required to be provided to MLV pursuant to this Agreement.

j- Due Diligence Cooperation. During the term of this Agreement, the Company will cooperate with any reasonable due diligence
review conducted by MLV or its representatives in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including, without limitation, providing
information and making available documents and senior corporate officers, during regular business hours and at the Company’s principal offices, as MLV
may reasonably request.
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k. Required Filings Relating to Placement of Placement Shares. The Company agrees that on such dates as the Securities Act shall
require, the Company will (i) file a prospectus supplement with the Commission under the applicable paragraph of Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act
(each and every filing under Rule 424(b), a “Filing Date”), which prospectus supplement will set forth, within the relevant period, the amount of Placement
Shares sold through MLV, the Net Proceeds to the Company and the compensation payable by the Company to MLV with respect to such Placement Shares,
and (ii) deliver such number of copies of each such prospectus supplement to each exchange or market on which such sales were effected as may be required
by the rules or regulations of such exchange or market.

L. Representation Dates;_Certificate. Each time during the term of this Agreement that the Company:

@) amends or supplements (other than a prospectus supplement relating solely to an offering of securities other than the
Placement Shares) the Registration Statement or the Prospectus relating to the Placement Shares by means of a post-effective amendment, sticker, or
supplement but not by means of incorporation of documents by reference into the Registration Statement or the Prospectus relating to the Placement Shares;

(ii) files an annual report on Form 10-K under the Exchange Act (including any Form 10-K/A containing amended financial
information or a material amendment to the previously filed Form 10-K);

(iii) files its quarterly reports on Form 10-Q under the Exchange Act; or

(iv) files a current report on Form 8-K containing amended financial information (other than information “furnished” pursuant to
Items 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K or to provide disclosure pursuant to Item 8.01 of Form 8-K relating to the reclassification of certain properties as discontinued
operations in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144) under the Exchange Act,

(Each date of filing of one or more of the documents referred to in clauses (i) through (iv) shall be a “Representation Date.”)

the Company shall furnish MLV (but in the case of clause (iv) above only if MLV determines that the information contained in such Form 8-K is material)
with a certificate, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 7(1). The requirement to provide a certificate under this Section 7(1) shall be automatically waived
for any Representation Date occurring at a time at which no Placement Notice is pending, which waiver shall continue until the earlier to occur of the date
the Company delivers a Placement Notice hereunder (which for such calendar quarter shall be considered a Representation Date) and the next occurring
Representation Date on which the Company files its annual report on Form 10-K. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) upon the delivery of the first Placement
Notice hereunder and (ii) if the Company subsequently decides to sell Placement Shares following a Representation Date when the Company relied on such
waiver and did not provide MLV with a certificate under this Section 7(1), then before MLV sells any Placement Shares, the Company shall provide MLV
with a certificate, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 7(1), dated the date of the Placement Notice.
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m. Legal Opinion. On or prior to the date of the first Placement Notice given hereunder, the Company shall cause to be furnished to
MLV a written opinion and a negative assurance letter of Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LLP ( “Company Counsel”), or other counsel
reasonably satisfactory to MLV. Thereafter, within five (5) Trading Days after each Representation Date with respect to which the Company is obligated to
deliver a certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 7(1) for which no waiver is applicable, and not more than once per calendar quarter, the Company
shall cause to be furnished to MLV a written letter of Company Counsel, or other counsel reasonably satisfactory to MLV, modified, as necessary, to relate to
the Registration Statement and the Prospectus as then amended or supplemented; provided that, in lieu of such negative assurance for subsequent periodic
filings under the Exchange Act, counsel may furnish MLV with a letter (a “Reliance Letter”) to the effect that MLV may rely on the negative assurance letter
previously delivered under this Section 7(m) to the same extent as if it were dated the date of such letter (except that statements in such prior letter shall be
deemed to relate to the Registration Statement and the Prospectus as amended or supplemented as of the date of the Reliance Letter).

n. Comfort Letter. On or prior to the date of the first Placement Notice given hereunder and within five (5) Trading Days after each
attached hereto as Exhibit 7(1) for which no waiver is applicable, the Company shall cause its independent accountants to furnish MLV letters (the “Comfort
Letters”), dated the date the Comfort Letter is delivered, which shall meet the requirements set forth in this Section 7(n); provided, that if requested by MLV,
the Company shall cause a Comfort Letter to be furnished to MLV within ten (10) Trading Days of such request following the date of occurrence of any
restatement of the Company’s financial statements. The Comfort Letter from the Company’s independent accountants shall be in a form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to MLV, (i) confirming that they are an independent public accounting firm within the meaning of the Securities Act and the PCAOB,
(ii) stating, as of such date, the conclusions and findings of such firm with respect to the financial information and other matters ordinarily covered by
accountants’ “comfort letters” to underwriters in connection with registered public offerings (the first such letter, the “Initial Comfort Letter”) and (iii)
updating the Initial Comfort Letter with any information that would have been included in the Initial Comfort Letter had it been given on such date and
modified as necessary to relate to the Registration Statement and the Prospectus, as amended and supplemented to the date of such letter.

0. Market Activities. The Company will not, directly or indirectly, (i) take any action designed to cause or result in, or that
constitutes or would reasonably be expected to constitute, the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale
or resale of Common Stock or (ii) sell, bid for, or purchase Common Stock in violation of Regulation M, or pay anyone any compensation for soliciting
purchases of the Placement Shares other than MLV.
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p. Investment Company Act. The Company will conduct its affairs in such a manner so as to reasonably ensure that neither it nor the
Subsidiary will be or become, at any time prior to the termination of this Agreement, an “investment company,” as such term is defined in the Investment
Company Act.

q. No Offer to Sell. Other than an Issuer Free Writing Prospectus approved in advance by the Company and MLV in its capacity as
agent hereunder pursuant to Section 23, neither MLV nor the Company (including its agents and representatives, other than MLV in their capacity as such)
will make, use, prepare, authorize, approve or refer to any written communication (as defined in Rule 405), required to be filed with the Commission, that
constitutes an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy Placement Shares hereunder.

L. Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Company will maintain and keep accurate books and records reflecting its assets and maintain internal
accounting controls in a manner designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP and including those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company, (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, (iii) that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with management’s and the Company’s directors’ authorization, and (iv)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on its financial statements. The Company will maintain such controls and other procedures, including, without limitation, those
required by Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and the applicable regulations thereunder that are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the
time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms, including, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure and to ensure that material information relating to the Company or the Subsidiary is made known to them by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which such periodic reports are being prepared.

8. Representations and Covenants of MLV. MLV represents and warrants that it is duly registered as a broker-dealer under FINRA, the
Exchange Act and the applicable statutes and regulations of each state in which the Placement Shares will be offered and sold, except such states in which
MLV is exempt from registration or such registration is not otherwise required. MLV shall continue, for the term of this Agreement, to be duly registered as a
broker-dealer under FINRA, the Exchange Act and the applicable statutes and regulations of each state in which the Placement Shares will be offered and
sold, except such states in which MLV is exempt from registration or such registration is not otherwise required, during the term of this Agreement. MLV
shall comply with all applicable law and regulations, including but not limited to Regulation M, in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, including the issuance and sale through MLV of the Placement Shares.
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9. Payment of Expenses. The Company will pay all expenses incident to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including
(i) the preparation, filing, including any fees required by the Commission, and printing of the Registration Statement (including financial statements and
exhibits) as originally filed and of each amendment and supplement thereto and each Issuer Free Writing Prospectus, in such number as MLV shall deem
reasonably necessary, (ii) the printing and delivery to MLV of this Agreement and such other documents as may be required in connection with the offering,
purchase, sale, issuance or delivery of the Placement Shares, (iii) the preparation, issuance and delivery of the certificates, if any, for the Placement Shares to
MLYV, including any stock or other transfer taxes and any capital duties, stamp duties or other duties or taxes payable upon the sale, issuance or delivery of the
Placement Shares to MLV, (iv) the reasonable fees and disbursements of the counsel, accountants and other advisors to the Company, (v) the fees and
disbursements of counsel to MLV incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated by this agreement in an aggregate amount of up to $25,000; (vi)
the fees and expenses of the transfer agent and registrar for the Common Stock, (vii) the filing fees incident to any review by FINRA of the terms of the sale
of the Placement Shares, and (viii) the fees and expenses incurred in connection with the listing of the Placement Shares on the Exchange.

10. Conditions to MILV’s Obligations. The obligations of MLV hereunder with respect to a Placement will be subject to the continuing
accuracy and completeness of the representations and warranties made by the Company herein, to the due performance by the Company of its obligations
hereunder, to the completion by MLV of a due diligence review satisfactory to it in its reasonable judgment, and to the continuing satisfaction (or waiver by
MLV in its sole discretion) of the following additional conditions:

a. Registration Statement Effective. The Registration Statement shall have become effective and shall be available for the sale of all
Placement Shares contemplated to be issued by any Placement Notice.

b. No Material Notices. None of the following events shall have occurred and be continuing: (i) receipt by the Company of any
request for additional information from the Commission or any other federal or state governmental authority during the period of effectiveness of the
Registration Statement, the response to which would require any post-effective amendments or supplements to the Registration Statement or the Prospectus;
(ii) the issuance by the Commission or any other federal or state governmental authority of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration
Statement or the initiation of any proceedings for that purpose; (iii) receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the
qualification or exemption from qualification of any of the Placement Shares for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for
such purpose; or (iv) the occurrence of any event that makes any material statement made in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus or any material
document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated therein by reference untrue in any material respect or that requires the making of any changes in the
Registration Statement, the Prospectus or documents so that, in the case of the Registration Statement, it will not contain any materially untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading and, that in the case of
the Prospectus, it will not contain any materially untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
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c. No Misstatement or Material Omission. MLV shall not have advised the Company that the Registration Statement or Prospectus,
or any amendment or supplement thereto, contains an untrue statement of fact that in MLV’s reasonable opinion is material, or omits to state a fact that in
MLV’s reasonable opinion is material and is required to be stated therein or is necessary to make the statements therein not misleading.

d. Material Changes. Except as contemplated in the Prospectus, or disclosed in the Company’s reports filed with the Commission,
there shall not have been any Material Adverse Change, or any development in the business or affairs of the Company that could reasonably be expected to
cause a Material Adverse Change, or a downgrading in or withdrawal of the rating assigned to any of the Company’s securities (other than asset backed
securities) by any rating organization or a public announcement by any rating organization that it has under surveillance or review its rating of any of the
Company’s securities (other than asset backed securities), the effect of which, in the case of any such action by a rating organization described above, in the
reasonable judgment of MLV (without relieving the Company of any obligation or liability it may otherwise have), is so material as to make it impracticable
or inadvisable to proceed with the offering of the Placement Shares on the terms and in the manner contemplated in the Prospectus.

e. Legal Opinion. MLV shall have received the opinions and negative assurances of Company Counsel required to be delivered
pursuant Section 7(m) on or before the date on which such delivery of such opinions are required pursuant to Section 7(m).

f. Comfort Letter. MLV shall have received the Comfort Letter required to be delivered pursuant Section 7(n) on or before the date
on which such delivery of such letter is required pursuant to Section 7(n).

g. Representation Certificate. MLV shall have received the certificate required to be delivered pursuant to Section 7(1) on or before
the date on which delivery of such certificate is required pursuant to Section 7(1).

h. No Suspension. Trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended on the Exchange and the Common Stock shall not
have been delisted from the Exchange.

i. [Reserved]

j- Securities Act Filings Made. All filings with the Commission required by Rule 424 under the Securities Act to have been filed
prior to the issuance of any Placement Notice hereunder shall have been made within the applicable time period prescribed for such filing by Rule 424.
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k. Approval for Listing. The Placement Shares shall either have been approved for listing on the Exchange, subject only to notice of
issuance, or the Company shall have filed an application for listing of the Placement Shares on the Exchange at, or prior to, the issuance of any Placement
Notice.

L. No Termination Event. There shall not have occurred any event that would permit MLV to terminate this Agreement pursuant to
Section 13(a).
11. Indemnification and Contribution.
(©) Company Indemnification. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold

harmless MLV, its partners, members, directors, officers, employees and agents and each person, if any, who controls MLV within the meaning of Section 15
of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act as follows:

(6] against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever, as incurred, joint or several, arising out of or
based upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Registration Statement (or any amendment thereto), or the
omission or alleged omission therefrom of a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, or arising
out of any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact included in any related Issuer Free Writing Prospectus or the Prospectus (or any
amendment or supplement thereto), or the omission or alleged omission therefrom of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

(i) against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever, as incurred, joint or several, to the extent of the
aggregate amount paid in settlement of any litigation, or any investigation or proceeding by any governmental agency or body, commenced or threatened, or
of any claim whatsoever based upon any such untrue statement or omission, or any such alleged untrue statement or omission; provided that (subject to
Section 11(d) below) any such settlement is effected with the written consent of the Company, which consent shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld;
and

(iii) against any and all expense whatsoever, as incurred (including the fees and disbursements of counsel), reasonably
incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any litigation, or any investigation or proceeding by any governmental agency or body, commenced
or threatened, or any claim whatsoever based upon any such untrue statement or omission, or any such alleged untrue statement or omission, to the extent that
any such expense is not paid under (i) or (ii) above,

provided, however, that this indemnity agreement shall not apply to any loss, liability, claim, damage or expense to the extent arising out of any untrue
statement or omission or alleged untrue statement or omission made solely in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the
Company by MLV expressly for use in the Registration Statement (or any amendment thereto), or in any related Issuer Free Writing Prospectus or the
Prospectus (or any amendment or supplement thereto).
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(b) MLV Indemnification. MLV agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its directors and each officer of the Company who signed the
Registration Statement, and each person, if any, who (i) controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act or (ii) is controlled by or is under common control with the Company against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense described
in the indemnity contained in Section 11(a), as incurred, but only with respect to untrue statements or omissions, or alleged untrue statements or omissions,
made in the Registration Statement (or any amendments thereto) or in any related Issuer Free Writing Prospectus or the Prospectus (or any amendment or
supplement thereto) in reliance upon and in conformity with information relating to MLV and furnished to the Company in writing by MLV expressly for use
therein.

(0) Procedure. Any party that proposes to assert the right to be indemnified under this Section 11 will, promptly after receipt of notice of
commencement of any action against such party in respect of which a claim is to be made against an indemnifying party or parties under this Section 11,
notify each such indemnifying party of the commencement of such action, enclosing a copy of all papers served, but the omission so to notify such
indemnifying party will not relieve the indemnifying party from (i) any liability that it might have to any indemnified party otherwise than under this Section
11 and (ii) any liability that it may have to any indemnified party under the foregoing provision of this Section 11 unless, and only to the extent that, such
omission results in the forfeiture of substantive rights or defenses by the indemnifying party. If any such action is brought against any indemnified party and
it notifies the indemnifying party of its commencement, the indemnifying party will be entitled to participate in and, to the extent that it elects by delivering
written notice to the indemnified party promptly after receiving notice of the commencement of the action from the indemnified party, jointly with any other
indemnifying party similarly notified, to assume the defense of the action, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indemnified party, and after notice
from the indemnifying party to the indemnified party of its election to assume the defense, the indemnifying party will not be liable to the indemnified party
for any legal or other expenses except as provided below and except for the reasonable costs of investigation subsequently incurred by the indemnified party
in connection with the defense. The indemnified party will have the right to employ its own counsel in any such action, but the fees, expenses and other
charges of such counsel will be at the expense of such indemnified party unless (1) the employment of counsel by the indemnified party has been authorized
in writing by the indemnifying party, (2) the indemnified party has reasonably concluded (based on advice of counsel) that there may be legal defenses
available to it or other indemnified parties that are different from or in addition to those available to the indemnifying party, (3) a conflict or potential conflict
exists (based on advice of counsel to the indemnified party) between the indemnified party and the indemnifying party (in which case the indemnifying party
will not have the right to direct the defense of such action on behalf of the indemnified party) or (4) the indemnifying party has not in fact employed counsel
to assume the defense of such action within a reasonable time after receiving notice of the commencement of the action, in each of which cases the
reasonable fees, disbursements and other charges of counsel will be at the expense of the indemnifying party or parties. It is understood that the indemnifying
party or parties shall not, in connection with any proceeding or related proceedings in the same jurisdiction, be liable for the reasonable fees, disbursements
and other charges of more than one separate firm admitted to practice in such jurisdiction at any one time for all such indemnified party or parties. All such
fees, disbursements and other charges will be reimbursed by the indemnifying party promptly after the indemnifying party receives a written invoice relating
to fees, disbursements and other charges in reasonable detail. An indemnifying party will not, in any event, be liable for any settlement of any action or claim
effected without its written consent. No indemnifying party shall, without the prior written consent of each indemnified party, settle or compromise or
consent to the entry of any judgment in any pending or threatened claim, action or proceeding relating to the matters contemplated by this Section 11
(whether or not any indemnified party is a party thereto), unless such settlement, compromise or consent (1) includes an unconditional release of each
indemnified party from all liability arising out of such litigation, investigation, proceeding or claim and (2) does not include a statement as to or an admission
of fault, culpability or a failure to act by or on behalf of any indemnified party.
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(d) Contribution. In order to provide for just and equitable contribution in circumstances in which the indemnification provided for in the foregoing
paragraphs of this Section 11 is applicable in accordance with its terms but for any reason is held to be unavailable from the Company or MLV, the Company
and MLV will contribute to the total losses, claims, liabilities, expenses and damages (including any investigative, legal and other expenses reasonably
incurred in connection with, and any amount paid in settlement of, any action, suit or proceeding or any claim asserted, but after deducting any contribution
received by the Company from persons other than MLV, such as persons who control the Company within the meaning of the Securities Act or the Exchange
Act, officers of the Company who signed the Registration Statement and directors of the Company, who also may be liable for contribution) to which the
Company and MLV may be subject in such proportion as shall be appropriate to reflect the relative benefits received by the Company on the one hand and
MLV on the other hand. The relative benefits received by the Company on the one hand and MLV on the other hand shall be deemed to be in the same
proportion as the total Net Proceeds from the sale of the Placement Shares (before deducting expenses) received by the Company bear to the total
compensation received by MLV (before deducting expenses) from the sale of Placement Shares on behalf of the Company. If, but only if, the allocation
provided by the foregoing sentence is not permitted by applicable law, the allocation of contribution shall be made in such proportion as is appropriate to
reflect not only the relative benefits referred to in the foregoing sentence but also the relative fault of the Company, on the one hand, and MLV, on the other
hand, with respect to the statements or omission that resulted in such loss, claim, liability, expense or damage, or action in respect thereof, as well as any
other relevant equitable considerations with respect to such offering. Such relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the
untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied by the Company
or MLV, the intent of the parties and their relative knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission. The
Company and MLV agree that it would not be just and equitable if contributions pursuant to this Section 11(d) were to be determined by pro rata allocation
or by any other method of allocation that does not take into account the equitable considerations referred to herein. The amount paid or payable by an
indemnified party as a result of the loss, claim, liability, expense, or damage, or action in respect thereof, referred to above in this Section 11(d) shall be
deemed to include, for the purpose of this Section 11(d), any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in connection with
investigating or defending any such action or claim to the extent consistent with Section 11(c) hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this
Section 11(d), MLV shall not be required to contribute any amount in excess of the commissions received by it under this Agreement and no person found
guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) will be entitled to contribution from any person who was
not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. For purposes of this Section 11(d), any person who controls a party to this Agreement within the meaning of
the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, and any officers, directors, partners, employees or agents of MLV, will have the same rights to contribution as that
party, and each officer and director of the Company who signed the Registration Statement will have the same rights to contribution as the Company, subject
in each case to the provisions hereof. Any party entitled to contribution, promptly after receipt of notice of commencement of any action against such party
in respect of which a claim for contribution may be made under this Section 11(d), will notify any such party or parties from whom contribution may be
sought, but the omission to so notify will not relieve that party or parties from whom contribution may be sought from any other obligation it or they may
have under this Section 11(d) except to the extent that the failure to so notify such other party materially prejudiced the substantive rights or defenses of the
party from whom contribution is sought. Except for a settlement entered into pursuant to the last sentence of Section 11(c) hereof, no party will be liable for
contribution with respect to any action or claim settled without its written consent if such consent is required pursuant to Section 11(c) hereof.
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12. Representations and Agreements to Survive Delivery. The indemnity and contribution agreements contained in Section 11 of this
Agreement and all representations and warranties of the Company herein or in certificates delivered pursuant hereto shall survive, as of their respective dates,
regardless of (i) any investigation made by or on behalf of MLV, any controlling persons, or the Company (or any of their respective officers, directors or
controlling persons), (ii) delivery and acceptance of the Placement Shares and payment therefor or (iii) any termination of this Agreement.

13. Termination.

a. MLV may terminate this Agreement, by notice to the Company, as hereinafter specified at any time (1) if there has been, since the
time of execution of this Agreement or since the date as of which information is given in the Prospectus, any Material Adverse Change, or any development
that is reasonably likely to result in a Material Adverse Change or, in the sole judgment of MLV, is material and adverse and makes it impractical or
inadvisable to market the Placement Shares or to enforce contracts for the sale of the Placement Shares, (2) if there has occurred any material adverse change
in the financial markets in the United States or the international financial markets, any outbreak of hostilities or escalation thereof or other calamity or crisis
or any change or development involving a prospective change in national or international political, financial or economic conditions, in each case the effect
of which is such as to make it, in the judgment of MLV, impracticable or inadvisable to market the Placement Shares or to enforce contracts for the sale of
the Placement Shares, (3) if trading in the Common Stock has been suspended or limited by the Commission or the Exchange, or if trading generally on the
Exchange has been suspended or limited, or minimum prices for trading have been fixed on the Exchange for at least ten (10) consecutive Trading Days, (4)
if any suspension of trading of any securities of the Company on any exchange or in the over-the-counter market shall have occurred and be continuing for at
least ten (10) consecutive Trading Days, (5) if a major disruption of securities settlements or clearance services in the United States shall have occurred and
be continuing, or (6) if a banking moratorium has been declared by either U.S. Federal or New York authorities. Any such termination shall be without
liability of any party to any other party except that the provisions of Section 9 (Payment of Expenses), Section 11 (Indemnification and Contribution),
Section 12 (Representations and Agreements to Survive Delivery), Section 18 (Governing Law and Time; Waiver of Jury Trial) and Section 19 (Consent to
Jurisdiction) hereof shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such termination. If MLV elects to terminate this Agreement as provided in this
Section 13(a), MLV shall provide the required notice as specified in Section 14 (Notices).

33




b. The Company shall have the right, by giving ten (10) days’ notice as hereinafter specified to terminate this Agreement in its sole
discretion at any time after the date of this Agreement. Any such termination shall be without liability of any party to any other party except that the
provisions of Section 9 (Payment of Expenses), Section 11 (Indemnification and Contribution), Section 12 (Representations and Agreements to Survive
Delivery), Section 18 (Governing Law and Time; Waiver of Jury Trial) and Section 19 (Consent to Jurisdiction) hereof shall remain in full force and effect
notwithstanding such termination.

C. MLYV shall have the right, by giving ten (10) days’ notice as hereinafter specified to terminate this Agreement in its sole discretion
at any time after the date of this Agreement. Any such termination shall be without liability of any party to any other party except that the provisions of
Section 9 (Payment of Expenses), Section 11 (Indemnification and Contribution), Section 12 (Representations and Agreements to Survive Delivery), Section
18 (Governing Law and Time; Waiver of Jury Trial) and Section 19 (Consent to Jurisdiction) hereof shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding
such termination.

d. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to this Section 13, this Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the issuance and sale of
all of the Placement Shares through MLV on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein except that the provisions of Section 9 (Payment of
Expenses), Section 11 (Indemnification and Contribution), Section 12 (Representations and Agreements to Survive Delivery), Section 18 (Governing Law
and Time; Waiver of Jury Trial) and Section 19 (Consent to Jurisdiction) hereof shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such termination.
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e. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless terminated pursuant to Sections 13(a), (b), (c), or (d) above or
otherwise by mutual agreement of the parties; provided, however, that any such termination by mutual agreement shall in all cases be deemed to provide that
Section 9 (Payment of Expenses), Section 11 (Indemnification and Contribution), Section 12 (Representations and Agreements to Survive Delivery), Section
18 (Governing Law and Time; Waiver of Jury Trial) and Section 19 (Consent to Jurisdiction) shall remain in full force and effect. Upon termination of this
Agreement, the Company shall not have any liability to MLV for any discount, commission or other compensation with respect to any Placement Shares not
otherwise sold by MLV under this Agreement.

f. Any termination of this Agreement shall be effective on the date specified in such notice of termination; provided, however, that
such termination shall not be effective until the close of business on the date of receipt of such notice by MLV or the Company, as the case may be. If such
termination shall occur prior to the Settlement Date for any sale of Placement Shares, such Placement Shares shall settle in accordance with the provisions of
this Agreement.

14. Notices. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given by any party to any other party pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement shall be in writing, unless otherwise specified, and if sent to MLV, shall be delivered to:

MLV & Co. LLC

1301 Avenue of the Americas, 43" F1. New York, New York
10020

Attention: General Counsel

Telephone:(212) 542-5880

Email: mlvlegal@mlvco.com

with a copy to (which copy shall not constitute notice):

LeClairRyan, A Professional Corporation
885 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10022

Attention: James T. Seery
Telephone:(973) 491-3315

Email: james.seery@leclairryan.com

and if to the Company, shall be delivered to:

Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.
Hi-Tech Park 2/4

Givat-Ram

P.O. Box 39098

Jerusalem, Israel 91390
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Telephone: 972-2-566-0001
Email: yifat@oramed.com
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with copies to (which copies shall not constitute notice):

Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer and Sullivan & Worcester LL.P

1633 Broadway

New York, NY 10019

Attention: Oded Har-Even, Esq. and Howard E. Berkenblit, Esq.
Telephone: (212) 660-3000

Email: ohareven@zag-sw.com and hberkenblit@zag-sw.com

Each party to this Agreement may change such address for notices by sending to the parties to this Agreement written notice of a new address for
such purpose. Each such notice or other communication shall be deemed given (i) when delivered personally, by email, or by verifiable facsimile transmission
(with an original to follow) on or before 4:30 p.m., New York City time, on a Business Day or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding
Business Day, (ii) on the next Business Day after timely delivery to a nationally-recognized overnight courier and (iii) on the Business Day actually received
if deposited in the U.S. mail (certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid). For purposes of this Agreement, “Business Day” shall
mean any day on which the Exchange and commercial banks in the City of New York are open for business.

An electronic communication (“Electronic Notice”) shall be deemed written notice for purposes of this Section 14 if sent to the electronic mail
address specified by the receiving party under separate cover. Electronic Notice shall be deemed received at the time the party sending Electronic Notice
receives confirmation of receipt by the receiving party. Any party receiving Electronic Notice may request and shall be entitled to receive the notice on paper,
in a nonelectronic form (“Nonelectronic Notice”) which shall be sent to the requesting party within ten (10) days of receipt of the written request for
Nonelectronic Notice.

15. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company and MLV and their respective
successors and the affiliates, controlling persons, officers and directors referred to in Section 11 hereof. References to any of the parties contained in this
Agreement shall be deemed to include the successors and permitted assigns of such party. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer
upon any party other than the parties hereto or their respective successors and permitted assigns any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities under or by
reason of this Agreement, except as expressly provided in this Agreement. Neither party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the other party.

16. Adjustments for Stock Splits. The parties acknowledge and agree that all share-related numbers contained in this Agreement shall be
adjusted to take into account any share consolidation, stock split, stock dividend, corporate domestication or similar event effected with respect to the
Placement Shares.
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17. Entire Agreement; Amendment; Severability. This Agreement (including all schedules and exhibits attached hereto and Placement Notices
issued pursuant hereto), together with that certain side letter dated as of the date hereof, constitutes the entire agreement and supersedes all other prior and
contemporaneous agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, among the parties hereto with regard to the subject matter hereof. Neither this
Agreement nor any term hereof may be amended except pursuant to a written instrument executed by the Company and MLV. In the event that any one or
more of the provisions contained herein, or the application thereof in any circumstance, is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable as written by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then such provision shall be given full force and effect to the fullest possible extent that it is valid, legal and enforceable, and the
remainder of the terms and provisions herein shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable term or provision was not contained herein, but
only to the extent that giving effect to such provision and the remainder of the terms and provisions hereof shall be in accordance with the intent of the parties

as reflected in this Agreement.

18. GOVERNING LAW AND TIME; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO THE PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS.
SPECIFIED TIMES OF DAY REFER TO NEW YORK CITY TIME. THE COMPANY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

19. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE NON-EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION
OF THE STATE AND FEDERAL COURTS SITTING IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK, BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN, FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF
ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, AND HEREBY IRREVOCABLY
WAIVES, AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT IN ANY SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING, ANY CLAIM THAT IT IS NOT PERSONALLY SUBJECT TO
THE JURISDICTION OF ANY SUCH COURT, THAT SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM OR
THAT THE VENUE OF SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IS IMPROPER. EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES PERSONAL
SERVICE OF PROCESS AND CONSENTS TO PROCESS BEING SERVED IN ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING BY MAILING A COPY
THEREOF (CERTIFIED OR REGISTERED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED) TO SUCH PARTY AT THE ADDRESS IN EFFECT FOR
NOTICES TO IT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND AGREES THAT SUCH SERVICE SHALL CONSTITUTE GOOD AND SUFFICIENT SERVICE
OF PROCESS AND NOTICE THEREOF. NOTHING CONTAINED HEREIN SHALL BE DEEMED TO LIMIT IN ANY WAY ANY RIGHT TO SERVE
PROCESS IN ANY MANNER PERMITTED BY LAW.

20. Use of Information. MLV may not use any information gained in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement, including due diligence, to advise any party with respect to transactions not expressly approved by the Company.
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21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed Agreement by one party to the other may be made by facsimile transmission.

22, Effect of Headings. The section and Exhibit headings herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.
23. Permitted Free Writing Prospectuses.

The Company represents, warrants and agrees that, unless it obtains the prior consent of MLV (such consent not to be unreasonably, withheld,
conditioned or delayed), and MLV represents, warrants and agrees that, unless it obtains the prior consent of the Company (such consent not to be
unreasonably, withheld, conditioned or delayed), it has not made and will not make any offer relating to the Placement Shares that would constitute an Issuer
Free Writing Prospectus, or that would otherwise constitute a “free writing prospectus,” as defined in Rule 405, required to be filed with the Commission.
Any such free writing prospectus consented to by MLV or by the Company, as the case may be, is hereinafter referred to as a “Permitted Free Writing
Prospectus.” The Company represents and warrants that it has treated and agrees that it will treat each Permitted Free Writing Prospectus as an “issuer free
writing prospectus,” as defined in Rule 433, and has complied and will comply with the requirements of Rule 433 applicable to any Permitted Free Writing
Prospectus, including timely filing with the Commission where required, legending and record keeping. For the purposes of clarity, the parties hereto agree
that all free writing prospectuses, if any, listed in Exhibit 23 hereto are Permitted Free Writing Prospectuses.

24, Absence of Fiduciary Relationship. The Company acknowledges and agrees that:

a. MLV is acting solely as agent in connection with the public offering of the Placement Shares and in connection with each
transaction contemplated by this Agreement and the process leading to such transactions, and no fiduciary or advisory relationship between the Company or
any of its respective affiliates, stockholders (or other equity holders), creditors or employees or any other party, on the one hand, and MLV, on the other hand,
has been or will be created in respect of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, irrespective of whether or not MLV has advised or is
advising the Company on other matters, and MLV has no obligation to the Company with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement except
the obligations expressly set forth in this Agreement;

b. it is capable of evaluating and understanding, and understands and accepts, the terms, risks and conditions of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement;

c. MLV has not provided any legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and it has consulted its own legal, accounting, regulatory and tax advisors to the extent it has deemed appropriate;
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d. it is aware that MLV and its affiliates are engaged in a broad range of transactions which may involve interests that differ from
those of the Company and MLV has no obligation to disclose such interests and transactions to the Company by virtue of any fiduciary, advisory or agency
relationship or otherwise; and

e. it waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any claims it may have against MLV for breach of fiduciary duty or alleged breach
of fiduciary duty in connection with the sale of Placement Shares under this Agreement and agrees that MLV shall not have any liability (whether direct or
indirect, in contract, tort or otherwise) to it in respect of such a fiduciary duty claim or to any person asserting a fiduciary duty claim on its behalf or in right
of it or the Company, employees or creditors of Company, other than in respect of MLV’s obligations under this Agreement and to keep information provided
by the Company to MLV and MLV’s counsel confidential to the extent not otherwise publicly-available.

25. Definitions.
As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the respective meanings set forth below:
“Applicable Time” means (i) each Representation Date and (ii) the time of each sale of any Placement Shares pursuant to this Agreement.

“Disclosure Package” means any Issuer General Use Free Writing Prospectus issued at or prior to the Applicable Time and the Prospectus,
all considered together.

“Issuer Free Writing Prospectus” means any “issuer free writing prospectus,” as defined in Rule 433, relating to the Placement Shares that
(1) is required to be filed with the Commission by the Company, (2) is a “road show” that is a “written communication” within the meaning of Rule 433(d)
(8)(i) whether or not required to be filed with the Commission, or (3) is exempt from filing pursuant to Rule 433(d)(5)(i) because it contains a description of
the Placement Shares or of the offering that does not reflect the final terms, in each case in the form filed or required to be filed with the Commission or, if
not required to be filed, in the form retained in the Company’s records pursuant to Rule 433(g) under the Securities Act Regulations.

“Issuer General Use Free Writing Prospectus” means any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus that is intended for general distribution to
prospective investors (other than a “bona fide electronic road show,” as defined in Rule 433), as evidenced by its being specified in Schedule 25 hereto
Regulations.

“Issuer Limited Use Free Writing Prospectus” means any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus that is not an Issuer General Use Free Writing
Prospectus.

“Rule 172,” “Rule 405,” “Rule 415,” “Rule 424,” “Rule 424(b),” “Rule 430B,” and “Rule 433" refer to such rules under the
Securities Act.
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All references in this Agreement to financial statements and schedules and other information that is “contained,” “included” or “stated” in the
Registration Statement or the Prospectus (and all other references of like import) shall be deemed to mean and include all such financial statements and
schedules and other information that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement or the Prospectus, as the case may be.

All references in this Agreement to the Registration Statement, the Prospectus or any amendment or supplement to any of the foregoing shall be
deemed to include the copy filed with the Commission pursuant to EDGAR; all references in this Agreement to any Issuer Free Writing Prospectus (other
than any Issuer Free Writing Prospectuses that, pursuant to Rule 433, are not required to be filed with the Commission) shall be deemed to include the copy
thereof filed with the Commission pursuant to EDGAR; and all references in this Agreement to “supplements” to the Prospectus shall include, without
limitation, any supplements, “wrappers” or similar materials prepared in connection with any offering, sale or private placement of any Placement Shares by
MLV outside of the United States.

[Remainder of the page intentionally left blank]
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If the foregoing correctly sets forth the understanding between the Company and MLV, please so indicate in the space provided below for that purpose,
whereupon this letter shall constitute a binding agreement between the Company and MLV.

Very truly yours,

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS
INC.

By: /s/ Nadav Kidron
Name: Nadav Kidron
Title: Chief Executive Officer and
President

ACCEPTED as of the date first-
above written:

MLV & CO.LLC

By: /s/ Patrice McNicoll
Name: Patrice
McNicoll
Title: Chief Executive
Officer
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SCHEDULE 1

FORM OF PLACEMENT NOTICE

From: Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.

To: MLV & Co. LLC

Attention:  Patrice McNicoll

Subject: At-the-Market Issuance — Placement Notice

Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the At-the-Market Issuance Sales Agreement between Oramed Pharmaceuticals
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and MLV & Co. LLC (“MLV”), dated April 2, 2015, the Company hereby requests that MLV sell up to

[ ] shares of the Company’s Common Stock, $0.012 par value per share, at a minimum market price of $per share, during the time period beginning
[month, day, time] and ending [month, day, time].




SCHEDULE 2

Compensation

The Company shall pay to MLV in cash, upon each sale of Placement Shares pursuant to this Agreement, an amount equal to 3% of the gross
proceeds from each sale of Placement Shares.




SCHEDULE 3

The Company,
Nadav Kidron

Yifat Zommer

MLV

Randy Billhardt
Ryan Loforte
Patrice McNicoll

Miranda Toledano

nadav@oramed.com

yifat@oramed.com

rbillhardt@mlvco.com
rloforte@mlvco.com
pmcnicoll@mlvco.com

mtoledano@mlvco.com

With a copy to mlvatmdesk@mlvco.com

Notice Parties




SCHEDULE 6(g)

Subsidiary

Oramed Ltd.




Schedule 25
Issuer General Use Free Writing Prospectuses

None.




EXHIBIT 7(I)
Form of Representation Date Certificate

This Representation Date Certificate (this “Certificate”) is executed and delivered in connection with Section 7(1) of the At-the-Market Issuance Sales
Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated April 2, 2015, and entered into between Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (the “Company”) and MLV & Co. LLC. All
capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Agreement.

The Company hereby certifies as follows:

1. As of the date of this Certificate (i) the Registration Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading and (ii) neither the Registration Statement nor
the Prospectus contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (iii) no event has occurred as a result of which it is
necessary to amend or supplement the Prospectus in order to make the statements therein not untrue or misleading for this paragraph 1 to be true.

2. Each of the representations and warranties of the Company contained in the Agreement were, when originally made, and are, as of the date
of this Certificate, true and correct in all material respects (except for representations and warranties that are made as of a specific date, which representations
and warranties shall be true and correct at and as of such respective specific date).

3. Except as waived by MLV in writing, each of the covenants required to be performed by the Company in the Agreement on or prior to the
date of the Agreement, this Representation Date, and each such other date prior to the date hereof as set forth in the Agreement, has been duly, timely and
fully performed in all material respects and each condition required to be complied with by the Company on or prior to the date of the Agreement, this
Representation Date, and each such other date prior to the date hereof as set forth in the Agreement has been duly, timely and fully complied with in all
material respects.

4. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or of any part thereof has been issued, and, to the knowledge of
the Company, no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or threatened by any securities or other governmental authority (including,
without limitation, the Commission).




5. No order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or the qualification or registration of the Placement Shares under the
securities or Blue Sky laws of any

jurisdiction are in effect and no proceeding for such purpose is pending before, or threatened, to the Company’s knowledge or in writing by, any securities or
other governmental authority (including, without limitation, the Commission).

The undersigned has executed this Officer’s Certificate of behalf of the Company as of the date first written above.

ORAMED PHARMACEUTICALS
INC.

By:

Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT 23
Permitted Free Writing Prospectuses

None.




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Nadav Kidron, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: April 2, 2015 /s/ Nadav Kidron

Nadav Kidron
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Yifat Zommer, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

0) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Dated: April 2, 2015 /s/ Yifat Zommer
Yifat Zommer
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., or the Company, on Form 10-Q for the period ended February 28, 2015 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, or the Report, I, Nadav Kidron, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to my knowledge:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Dated: April 2, 2015 /s/ Nadav Kidron
Nadav Kidron, President and Chief Executive
Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report of Oramed Pharmaceuticals Inc., or the Company, on Form 10-Q for the period ended February 28, 2015 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, or the Report, I, Yifat Zommer, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to my knowledge:

@) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Dated: April 2, 2015 /s/ Yifat Zommer

Yifat Zommer, Chief Financial Officer




